
CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE-SEA
HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA

Regular Meeting wednesday Timothy Blomgren
City Hall Jtne 22,2016 Nancy Collins, Vice President
East Side of Monte Verde 9:00 AM Richard Flower, president
between Ocean & Seventh Avenues Niels Reimers

Tara Twomey, Treasurer

I. Roll Call

II. Announcements from Board Memtrers and Director
III. Appearances

Anyone wishing to address the Library Board on items within its jurisdiction may do so
now. Please rise, state your name and the matter on which you wish to speak
Matters not appearing on the Library Board agenda will not receive action at this
meeting. Presentations will be timited to three minutes, or as established by the
Library Board of Trustees

IV. Anproval of Minutes of the May 25,2016 Meeting (pp. 1 - 2)
V. Orders of Business

A. Introduction of Local History Librarian Kathleen O'Connell
B. Receive report from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF

Activities
C. Review annual request to the Carmel Public Library Foundation for Fiscal Year

2016117 funding (pp. 3 - 59)
D. Consideration of a request from the Carmel Public Library Foundation to hold

the annual Donor Salute event and serve wine in the Main Library on Sunday,
March 5, 2017. (pp. 60-61)

VI. Librarian's Report
Review of monthly statistics (pp.62 - 67)
City Council action regarding Fiscal Year 2016/17 requests for additional library

hours, new HVAC and heating equipment for both buildings, and interior paint
and carpet for the Park Branch Library.

VII. Treasurer'sReport:
A. Receive Treasureros Report
B. Accept May 31, 2016 Check Register (pp.67 -73)

V[I. Adjournment

The next regularly scheduled Library Board of Trustees meeting will be hetd July 27,2016.

Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees
regarding an item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection in the Library Directorrs office
at the Park Branch library at the corner of Mission & Sixth Streets during normal business hours.



CITY OF CARMEL.BY.THE.SEA
HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

AGENDA

The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea does not discriminate against persons with disabilities. Carmel-by-the-Sea
City Hall is an accessible facility. The City of Carmel-by-the-Sea telecommunications device for the
Deaf/Speech Impaired (T.D.D.) number is l-800-735-2929.

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

l, lonet Bombord, Library and Community Activities Director for the City of Carmel-by-the-Sea,
DO HEREBY CERTIFY, under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California, that the
foregoing notice was posted at the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Hall bulletin board, posted at the
Harrison Memorial Library on Ocean and Lincoln Avenues and the Carmel Post Office and
distributed to members of the media on June t7 ,2016.

Dated this 17th day of June 201"6 at the hour of 5 p.m.

Librarf and Community Activities Director
Janet Bombard



MINUTES
HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

CITY OF CARMEL.BY-THE.SEA
May 25,2016

I. CALL TO ORDER

The regular meeting of the Harrison Memorial Library Board of Trustees was held on the above
date at 9:00 a.m. President FLOWER called the meeting to order.

II. ROLL CALL:
PRESENT: COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
ABSENT: NONE
STAFF PRESENT: Janet Bombard,Libtarv Director

Carolina Lopez, Library Office Assistant

III. ANNOUNCEMENTS FROM LIBRARY BOARD & DIRECTOR:

Library Director Janet Bombard informed the board that she is working on scheduling an
appointment with the Ad Hoc committee and the architects to talk about the buildings. She will
notify the board when this meeting will take place.

IV. APPEARANCES:

No appearances.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES:

Board Member REIMERS moved to,
Meetins. seconded by Board Member COLLINS and carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES: COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NOES: NONE
ABSENT: NONE
ABSTAIN: NONE

VI. ORDERS OF BUSINESS:

A. Receive report from the Carmel Public Library Foundation regarding CPLF
Activities

No representative from CPLF was present.

B. Receive report from Circulation Supervisor Amy Rector and Youth Services Librarian
Grace Melady regarding the adult and youth Summer Reading programs

The summer reading program this year is Read for the Win. Both Circulation Supervisor Amy
Rector and Youth Services Librarian Grace Melady talked about the summer reading program,
the scheduled performers and prizes for patrons/children that complete the required reading.



The program will run from June 6th - July 16th. This year teens will have the opportunity to

participite in the bookmark contest sponsored by the Friends of the Library'

C. Consideration of the request to close both library buildings Tuesday, August L6th, 2016 for
a library staff training daY.

The Library Director spoke to the subject of the staff training: serving library patrons with
mental illness.

Board Member REIMERS moved to,
for the librarv staff trainine dav. seconded by
following roll call vote:

VII. LIBRARIAN'SREPORT:

The Library Director reviewed the monthly statistics with the Board. Bombard also informed the

Board that the library has a new part-time reference librarian and two other people are almost

through with the city's hiring pro"".r. Bombard updated the Board on the Cenic broadband

internet project, installation of which will begin in July'

VTII. TREASURERS REPORT:

Board Treasurer Twomey reviewed the April 2016 financial statements and check register. There
were no extraordinary expenses that needed special attention from the Board. Twomey reported

that assets are up but should be headed down soon. The broadband equipment grant issue on the

financial statements has been resolved.

Board Member COLLINS moved to, Accept the April2016 financial statements. seconded by
Board Member REIMERS and carried by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:
ABSTAIN:

ADJOURNMENT:

There being no further
adjourned at9:41am.

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE
NONE,

COLLINS, FLOWER, REIMERS, TWOMEY
NONE
NONE
NONE
NONE

x.

business to come before the
The next regular meeting is

Board, President Flower declared the meeting
scheduled for June 29,2016.

Respectfully submitted,
Carolina Lopez, Administrative Assistant

Approved by:

Richard Flower, President, Library Board of Trustees

2

T th.20

Board Member COLLINS carried by the



HARRISoNMEMoRIALLIBRARYBoARDoFTRUSTEES
Staff Report

June 22,2016
To:

From:

Subject:

narriso-n uemorial Library Board of Trustees

Janet Bombard, LibrarY Director

Review annual request to the Carmel Public Library Foundation for Fiscal Year
2016117 funding

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
ln Fiscal year 2012113 the carmel public Library Foundation (CPLF) implemented a new procedure

wipr regard to the disbursement of fiscal year budget funds.. After the Library Board of Trustees

adopts a new riscar year budget, the Library Direcior submits a formal, written request for funding to

the Carmel Public Library Foundation.

The Fiscal year zo16t17 request for funding follows this report. ln addition to the $291 ,000 disbursed

to the library by cpLF during Fy 2015/16, s-taff requested an additional $8,000 to cover the purchase

of new furniture for the Park Branch Library lobby'

The request was presented to the Carmel Public Library Foundation at its June 13,2016 board
meeting. The cpLF board will make a determination as to whether to grant the funding request at its

September 2016 Board Retreat.

ATTACHMENTS:
Attachment 1: Request for Fiscal Year 2016117 funding



A f TAe- r-+ MLr"-rT I

Carmel Publi c Ltbrary Foundation
Harrison Memorial Library

PartnershiP Agreement
FY 2OL6-L7

Request for Funds

1. Amount requested: $Zgg,OOO

2. Last awarded FY 2015-2016: $291'100

3. Reason for increase: Requested funding for operating support, plus new
furniture for the Park Branch Library lobby lounge / small group meeting area.

4. Funds for:

Operating support: $29 1,000

Furniture for the Park Branch lobby: $8,000

5. Schedu

1st etr:
2nd etr:
3rd etr:
4th etr:

le of disbursements (to be planned by CPLF)

+



Summary of Goals & Objectives

one page summary statement (or attach current strategic plan - ATTACHMENT B)

including:
KeY goals & activities

ScoPe of services

Current Program(s) / activities

New Programs(s) / activities

Current Otganization Chart - AT'IACHMENT C

Attachments
current annual budget showing both income and expenses
ATTACHMENT D

Projected next year budget ATTACHMENT E

Most current month year-to-date balance sheet and income statement
AT'IACHMENT F

Most recent audit ATTACHMENT G

Last year-end (June) Libraian's Report ATTACHMENT H

Most current month Librarian's Reporl ATTACHMENT I

Signatures
Executive Director

Library Director

CPLF Board President

President Library Trustee

4

Date



Arlir("itl-tEtl ,3

HARRISOF{ MEMORIAL LIBRARY

STRATEGIC WORKPLAN

20L3 - 2015

City of Carmel-by-the-Sea, California
January 2013

a



/-)
\_)

Introduction

ln Novemb er 2Ol2,staffconducted a six-week community survey in order to ascertain
what our library users want and expect from the library. The intention of the survey
questions ** io determine what is important to our users, not only with regard to library
services, but their personal priorities as well. We asked what people like most about their
community and what they would change. We wanted to know what they want for their
children and grandchildren. And, of course, we asked how they would change the library
to suit their needs. Our goal was to take their responses and integrate their personal and
community priorities into our service plan.

Guided by input from our users and the Carmel-by-the-Sea City Council's objectives of
community ciraracter, long-term vitality, organizational effectiveness and fiscal stability,
library staif engaged in a planning workshop which became the basis of this new three-
year work plan.

2l't century libraries must be flexible. We are no longer a physical space that houses only
books; we provide a variety of fonnats and materials, and our virtual presence extends
beyond four walls. A recent New York Times article discusses the void that libraries are

filting now that many communities no longer have bookstores. Our survey responses
indicle that our library users do want us to function more like a bookstore while still
retaining a library atmosphere. People's lives today are hectic and our library patrons
also want their library services and hours to frt around their busy schedules. It is our duty
to make careful choices that respond to the changing needs and expectations of our 2ltt
century users. We created this work plan with those needs in mind.

Vision Statement

Harrison Memorial Library will:

Be a welcoming community center that connects diverse users from multiple generations
to their community and to each other by offering a wide range of educational and
cultural programs

Provide outstanding customer s ervice

Be a safe and inviting place for the community's youth while providing materials, spaces,
and activities to engage their interest and promote life-long learning

Be innovative and continuolly changing, adopting new and emerging technologies to
meet the community's informational and service needs

Provide collections that are broad in scope and depth, in a wide range of formats

7



il

Be a respected and sustainable organization that functions as the cultural, intellectual
and informational heart of the community

Harrison Memorial Library Mission Statement

The Harrison Memorial Library provides collections, resources and programs that
support educational, informational, and recreational pursuits and document the history
and development of Carmel-by-the-Sea and the surrounding region.

Carmel Public Library Foundation Mission Statement

The mission of the Carmel Public Library Foundation is to provide supplemental funds
for Harrison Memorial Library that will ensure free library service in perpetuity.

ff



,1

i'-r

GOAL 1: Enhance the user experience by making the library more accessible,
convenient and easy to use.

First Year Objectives:

o Allow the reasonable use of cell phones in the Park Branch Lobby, and in the
Teen Room and the balcony adjacent to the Reference Deparbnent in the Main
Library.

o Designate the Main Library Reading Room as a quiet zone'
r Through training, ensure that each staff member is able to assist patrons with any

technology in either building.
o Investigate options for "self-serve" pick up ofbooks that have been placed on

hold for Patrons.r Raise the limit at which library r.rser privileges are blocked due to unpaid late fees.
o Develop a welcome packet to hand out with new library cirrds.
. Interfile oversized books in the Main Library with regular collections.
o Allow coffee in covered containers.
o Put out water bowls and dog biscuits at both buildings.

Second Year Objectives:

r Install catalog computers onmezzatine and in stacks area of the Main Library.
o Investigate the possibility of adding an additional "Food for Fines" month during

the year to offset user requests for the elimination of late fees.
. Investigate installing either a "Red Box" style machine in front of the Main

Library that will allow users to check out library materials 24 hours a day or a
kiosk that will be stocked with free books.

o Develop clear and user-friendly signage. Significantiy reduce the number of "do
not" and "no" signs, and eliminate the clutter of too much signage in the library.

e Expand the fiction collection to include more literary fiction lworks claimed to
have literary meritl.

. Add additionai shelving for Main Library Audio Visual collections.

. Add a map feature to the online catalog to help users find materials in the library.

Third Year Objectives;

r Explore implementation of Radio Frequency Identification Technology (RFiD)
that will allow library users to simultaneously check out stacks of materiais from
self checkout units.

Ll



[',

Years One Through Three:

. Improve and create cataiog records, indexes and finding aids to make ali Locai
History department materials accessibie to the public.

r Develop clear and user-friendly signage. Significantly reduce the number of '"do
not" and "no" signs, and eliminate the clutter of too much signage in the library.

. Explore ways to better market library programs and services, and to more
effectively convey messages that affect library users (closures, for example).

" ImPr'v. "1" 

,iiff#::'H**ff;r*r*L**. Installing more end-cap sheiving
o Continuously weed all library collections.
. Staff in both buildings will, whenever possible, escort library users to service

desks andior the stacks to locate materials.

GOAL 2: Continue to provide a variety of interesting and informative programs
for all ages

First Year Objectives:

. Recruit volunteers to help staff with library programs.
o Continue to provide at least two adult programs per month.
e Deveiop an Oral History program.

.r. Explore ways in which to make movie nights a successful prograrn.
e Increase the number of teen programs.
r Develop programming targeted to the 20 to 30-year-old demographic.
. Develop prograrnming targeted to the 31 to 50-year old demographic.
. lvlake DVD's of past and current recorded programs and add them the circulating

collection.

Second Year Objectives:

. Provide reievant, useful local history workshops. Possible workshops include
preserving family photographs and how to research your family tree"

. Increase the number of once-monthly drop in programs (such as the First Safurday
Tech Workshops).

. Provide opporlunities to the public to learn and use new technologies.
r Increase outreach to preschools.

tc



i--,

. Impiement prograrnming targeted to the 20 to 30-year-oid demographic.

" Implernent programming targeted to the 31 to 50-year old demographic.

Third Year Objectives:

. Recruit a program coordinator to help staff increase and effectively manage
programs.

GOAL 3: Use technologr to enhance and support public service to the
communify

First Year Objectives:

' Make the digitized Devendorf-Galante Collection available online through the
library and City websites.

. Provide scanning and faxing services at the Main Library.

. Install a public computer terminai in the Local History department.

. Investigate additional sources for purchasing or leasing eBooks. Add more eBook
titles to the collection as options become available,.

o Launch pilot program to circulate eReaders with pre-ioaded titles.
. Record iibrary pro$ams whenever possible. Make them avaiiable on the library

website and Facebook pages via video streaming.
r Install additional AWE early literacy computer stations in Youth Services.

Upgrade existing AWE stations.

Second Year Objectives:

r Begin to digitize and make Locai History collections available online.
r Redesign library website to make it more functional and user friendly. Address

website accessibility issues.
. ImplEment onlhe library card registration through library website,
. Add map feature to the online card catalog to help library users determine

location of the materials they are seeking in the library.

rl



i,.

Third Year Objective:

r Develop a series of "History Pin" app walking tours of Carmel which will be
accessed by residents and visitors through their smartphones.

r Continue digitization and online posting of Locai History collections.
. Expand virtual services by adding streaming video and music platforms that can

be accessed from the library website.
o Install a print kiosk in the Reference Department to enable users to print their own

documents from public computers.

GOAL 4: Implement solutions that promote staff efficiency and effective
workjlow

First Year Objectives:

. Continue to cross train staff so that there are at least two other staff members who
can perform each job function.r Expand -' j"'#*iii #'h,fti.";' {i},i,,,.er Match to reach a wi der

audience of interested volunteers
. Identify and increase professional training opportunities for staff.
. Revise staff work schedules to provide better work{low and maximize efficiency' during off-desk periods.
. Reassign staff work tasks to better distribute workloads and continue with

library's stated objective of cross training staff, Encourage staff to look at their
new assignments with an sye toward modifying processes and improving
workflow.

Second Year Objectives:

r Install an ergonomic Book Retum in the Park Branch library parking lot.

Third Year Objectives:

. Investigate implementing Radio Frequency identification Technology (RFID),
which will allow easy location of incorrectly shelved material and improve theft
detection.

iL



r Investigate the possibility of removing a wall in the Main Library lobby in order
to expand the materials check-in area.

.r Investigate the possibility of installing automatic book sorters in one or both
buildings that will allow materials to be returned and automatically logged back in
to the system 24 hours /daY.

Years One Through Three:

o Systematically review all existing iibrary contracts, beginning with the
McNaughton book leasing plan, the Baker & Taylor contract for materials
processing, and the library's current banking services. Compare with competing
vendors' services in order to identify the best and most cost-effective soiutions.

GOAL 5: Modify library spaces to provide a more welcoming and functional
cnvironment

First Year Objectives:

. Remove locking cabinet doors in the Local History department.
n Reconfigure and weed local history department collections to make more space in

the Locai History depanment vault. Install additional shelving.
- . Add talier shelving in the AV (audio book and DVD) section of the Main Library

to accommodate expanding collections.
. Replace hard, wooden chairs in the Main Library with craftsman style padded

chairs.
r Create a small, free community meeting space in the'feen Lounge of the Main

Library by removing the sheiving in the middle of the room and reducing
retention periods of the magazines stored in the room. Purchase a foiding table
and chairs, to be stored in the adjacent computer room, which can be set up for
meetings.

o Explore feasibility of increasing the ieased books plan to include more nonfiction
so that time sensitive titles can be returned instead of going onto the Reading
Room shelves.

. Maximize space in the Main Library Reading Room:
. Revise weeding criteria and thoroughly weed nonfiction section of

Main Libraryr investigate removing or relocating one of the large tables in the Main
Library Reading Room and installing comfortable seating in its place
in order to facilitate easier access to collections neer the tabie

l,-t!?



.ll_
I

Second Year Objectives:

. Add taller shelving for new fiction and nonfiction books in the Main Library
Lobby in order to expand collections of new materials and to allow for longer
retention of the materials.

. Develop a iibrary accessibility plan for users with disabilities.

. Add bean bags and other comfortable furniture in the Youth Services department
that wiil allow parents and caregivers to read to children.

r Investigate ways in which air quality and ventilation in the Main Library might be
improved

o Paint the Teen Lounge and add more fumiture. lnstall a White Board on one wall.
Paint one wall green or biue to facilitate the making of videos.

. Reconfigure staff office spaces in both buildings to provide better workflow, more
functionaiity, and to provide work spaces for staff that cunently do not have
them.

Third Year Objectives:
" Re-do the color scheme in the Youth Services department to freshen it up and

make it more attractive to young users.
. Create age-appropriate zones (1 -4 years, 5 - 8 years, and 9 - 12 years) in the

Youth Services Department so that ail age ranges served by the department will
have their own "place" to use library materiais and sociaiize.

. Work with the Carmel Public Library Foundation to fundraise for new gas

fireplace logs that will iook more attractive and offer better heating of the Main
Library Reading Room.

o Update the Main Library hali and restrooms with better lighting, paint and new
electric hand dryers.

o Determine cost and feasibility of installing moveable shelving on coasters in both
buildings.

. Remodel Main Library and Youth Services circulation desks to make them more
functional.

o Investigate the possibility of locating the reference and circuiation desks on the
same floor.

i*



Library Staff Organization Chart

20L4

Library Director -,---l

/\ I -l- ;\,-, i
1 \ I /Lr- L l.L.7i--r q_Nl ,- \_l

PT Office Assistant - 12 hr/wk

Circulation
Supervisor

I

I

2 FT Library
Assistants

I

I

3 PT Library
Assistants c

I

I

7 On-call Library
Assistants

Local History
Librarian II

I

I

Tech Services
FT Library Asst

Reference
Librarian II

I

I

3 PT Librarian Iu

Youth Services
Librarian II

I

I

2 PT Library
Assistants b

a. two 77 hr/wk, one I hr/wk

b. one 30 hrlwk, one 17hrlwk

c. one 17 hr/wk, one 15 hrlwk, one 12 hr/wk

(5



D
rY T5116 LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENOITURES . ADMINISTRATION FY 14115

I IIJ
ACTUAL

41141',|5 FY 15/16

Telephone Total $9,566 $6,606 $9,400

Csntracted Services:
Bookeeping Services Golden Gate qggl!g!!,ng $4,225 $3,125 $4,225

.P.G. Self Storage $2,400 $1,800 $2.400
/Audit Services $3,500 $o $o

Overdue Materials Collection Transworld $7oo $o $700

@ sentry, con""q!!9"rlll $1,000 s756 $1,650

-CopV ServiCes Copies by the Sea, Copy King, Welcome Packets $1,900 $954 $1,400

@ellowPages,ConstantContaCt,EngagedPatronS $1,445 $1,351 $1,550
ffitwe.t $2,000 $1,000 $1,800

Total $17,170 $8,986 913,725

Professional DeveloPment:
S-taff Training lnternet Libn., lnfopeople $3,500 $2,145 $3,500

{uileaqe $1,200 $26s $1,000
.'Professional Memberships ALA, cLA, American Archivists $1,200 $'t,118 $1,700

pacitic Library Partnership Membership Fees $8,645 $8,641 $8,641
Total $14,545 $12,169 $14,841

Supplies: Office / Custodial / Borrower / Equipment / lnfo Systems

Total $11,000 $8,045 $11,700

Postaqe: Stamps, PO Box Rental
Total $1,250 $1,083 $1,500

fdcility Maintenance:
Fu rn ish ings-Repair/Maintenance Total $500 $o $500

Donor AcknowledoemenUSigns:
Volunteer Recognition $5oo $250 $300
Siqns $500 $669 $700

Total $1,000 $919 $1,000

Bank Charges/Retd Checks: Total $250 $51 $125

Documents-Refunds/Lost: Tota! $100 $o $75

ADMINISTRATION TOTAL: $55,381 $37,859 $52,866
page 1

It ".



rY TSIT6 LIBRARY BUDGET

FY 14115EXPENDITURES . DOCUMENTS
Main Collection:

$3,722n Fiction-Travel Cont.
$3,331

Amazon Prime Membershi
$24,813Book Rental

McNauqhton Buyback
$1,639Print
$13,767Audiovisual

Online SubscriPtion - Overdrive
$4,274Additional Overdrive Titles

$1,200$1,101jfeen Fiction - Main
-'Adult G Novel Collection
'{een Nonfiction - Main
Teen DVD Collection
Teen Audio Collection i,, '. ' ,, ':-'-.

$100,399

Reference Collection:
$4,000ral Reference

$16,000€rrintinuations
ferenceTetabases new: Hoopla. Zinnio

Youth Services Collection:
$13,000YS Collection

$3,624YS Audio Video
ne Databas€ Brainfuse, Scienceflix

$17,482 $19,750$19,000

Local Historv Collection :

$1,705'"Documents & Diqital Preservation
$2,500$1,327onservation & SuPPlies

Professional Collection :

$12,100s (lncluding Boo

$179,661$180,329 $132,416DOCUMENTS TOTAL:

p.2

t'1



FY 15/16 LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENDITU RES.EQU I PMENT FY 14115

uipment Maintenance / Contracts:
LH scanner,copy machines,elevators,AWE,Thumper,

fCheck, Security Gates, Envisionware, Xerox, 3M
$14,700$14,700

CeSl Docutec, Applied Microfilm, typewriters

ew EquiDment:
$65

$1,000
$375
$50o

$7,595
$1,400
$350

$2,300
$375

Shelving for Technical Services
'l ipad with hardware - cataloguing station
High chair Local History back workstation
Blinds for reference room
administration coPY machine
4 office chairs

card catalog local history
Color printer - Youth Services

EQUTPMENT TOTAL:

FY 13114
=XPENOITURES 

. CATALOGING
rocessing: OCL lng

Library Gards

1pg 1* lilsrl'lbrary Loan , .-'.: -? u 1 '

$7,074CATALOGING TOTAL:

lx'



FY 1 5116 LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENDITURES . INFORMATION SYSTEMS FY 14115

I tu
ACTUAL

4t14t15 FY 15/16

Equipment: Computers, Monitors, etc. Total $12,525 $15,219 $18,000

Support & Maintenance:
..1 Bywater Solutions Hosting and Maintenance $9,000 $8,300 $8,750 '

!LS Modifiiation / Support: $350 $o $o
Icell upqradA\ $1,200 $1,200 $o

-Other Techdical Support - Computer/Phone: $1,000 $880 $1,000 =,

Total $11,550 $10,380 $9,750

Telecomm un ication Provider:
Total-_-lComcast, Redshift $1,810 $1,331 $2,415*

Software : lpswitch, Faronics Total $850 s80 $500

Website Maintenance / Enhancement :

Domain Name, t

Library Anywher
lloud Trax, Engaged Patrc rns Calenda

e, Author Alerts Total $2,185 $1,127 $2,200 t

INFORMATION SYSTEMS TOTAL: $28,920 $28,137 $32,365

EXPENDITURES . PROGRAMS FY 14115 YTD FY 15/16
Proqrams:

$5,000 $4,728 $6,000Youth Reading Programs
'YS Summer Reading Program $5,000 $1,793 $5,000
Teen Programs $600 $56 $400
Adult i Local History Programs $3,500 $1 91 $1,500 ,

PROGRAMS TOTAL: $14,100 $6,768 $'l2,go0

CONTINGENCY TOTAL: $500 $0 $o

i7



GET SUMMAR:I
BUDGET
2014115

YTD ACTUAL
4i1412A15

BUDGET
2015116

REVENUES

I iLranr Anarrlinnc $15,000 $12,952 $14,450
$0 $3,379 $o-GA State Library

$19,000 $24,000 $21,000 *-friends of HML
$1,200 $91 1 $1,ooolnfaracf lnnrrmA

--CPLF- U n restricted Donations $280,000 $210,000 $280,000
$500 $377,750 $5oerrl-:lainrfin

Total $315,700 $629,002 $316,950

EXPTruOITURES

Adminief ratinn $55,381 $37,315 $52,866
$180,329 $133,053 $179,661Documents

Equipment $27,620 $27,691 $29,260

Cataloqing $9,700 $7,075 $9,850
$28,070 $20,164 $32,365lnformation SYstems

Proqrams $14,100 6,768 $12,900
$500 0 $oConfinoenc

Total $315,700 $232,066 $316,902

RESERVES AS OF MARCH 31,2015

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF) $914',917

LESS RESTRICTED BRADNEY FUND $46'747
LESS FY 15/16 SIX MONTH OPERATING RESERVE" $158'475
LESS EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND $1OO,OOO

TOTAL $305,222

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED RESERVE FUNDS: $609,695

*112Fy 13114 Budget as per HMLBT Financial Policy adopted 2/03

p.5

,{c)



)rfIc,q .l

FY 16N7 LTBRARY BUDGET

EXPEUOITURES - ADMINISTRATION FY 15/16 rTD ACTUAL
4n2:i16

FY 16117

$4,225
$2,400
$700

$1,650
$1,400
$1,550
$1,999__

s13.725

w
$3,250
$1^800
$800
$816
$556
$22s
$900
$8.351

99q9.

$4,333
$2,400
$800

$1,100
$1,500
$900

$!900
$12.8:

Telephone...-f

Contracted Services:
Bookeeping Services Gotoen Gate gootreeping

P.G. Self Storage
Overdue Materials Collection transworto

Building Alarm Fees Sentry' Concept Security

CoPY SerViC€S Copies oy tne Sea, Copv King, Welcome pkts

Advertising constant Contact

Courier Services Kal west

T

Tota!
Professional DeveloPment:

Qfaf{ Trainino lnternet t ibn.. lnfooeoole $3,500 $1,412 $2,500
$1,000 $261 $s00t/lilaraa
$1,700 $1,014 $1,700Drnfaceinnal Memhershios ALA. CLA. Am Archivists
$8,641 $8,641 $11,641PLP Membership Fees

Total $14,841 $11,328 ${6,341

Supplies:
Teen room $o $400

Office / Custodial /EquiPment / $11,700 s5,811 $11,700
Iotal ${ 1,700 $5,811 $12,100

Postage: Stamps, PO Box Rental
Total $1,500 $803 $1,050

Facility Maintenance:
Furnishinqs-Repai r/Mai ntenance Iotal $500 $o $500

Donor AcknowledgemenUSigns:
Volunteer Recognition $300 $2s0 $300

Siqns $700 $o $t,000
Total $1,000 $250 $1,300

Bank Charges/Retd Checks: Iotal $125 $113 $125

Documents-Refu nds/Lost: Iotal $75 $z $so

ADMINISTRATION TOTAL: $52,866 $33,939 $53,999

))r#,,

p. 1



€
ryNl,r LIBRARY BUDGET

EXPENDITURES - DOCUMENTS FY 15/16
flUAtJllrAL

4112t16 FY16117

Main Collection:
Non Fiction $23,000 $14,842 $23,000

Non Fiction-Travel Cont. $5,000 $4,503 $5,000

FictioF $5,300 $3,612 $5,300
Amazon Prime MembershiP $1 20 $108 $1 20

Book Rental $29,661 $31,626 $32.000

Leased Book Buyback $500 $0 $1,200

Larqe Print $2,500 $1,099 $2,ooo

Audiovisual $22,000 $'12,7B',|' $22,000

Online Subscription - Overdrive $2,100 $2,100 $2,100
Additional Overdrive Titles $5,500 $2,540 $5,500
Special Category $1 00 $0 $50

Teen Fiction - Main $'1,200 $928 $1,200
Adult Graphic Novel Collection $1,000 $s56 $1,000
Teen Nonfiction - Main $800 $729 $800
Teen DVD Collection $200 $140 $200
Teen Audio Collection $200 $1 02 $200

Total $99,181 $75,666 $101,670

Reference Collection:
General Reference $4,000 $1,987 $3,500
Continuations $16,000 $6,543 $11,000

ffi new: Hoopla,-ffi1| ,4.,r( $23,030 $19,316 $28,500
Total $43,030 $27,846 $43,000

Youth Services Collection:
YS Collection $13,000 $10,917 $13,000
YS Audio Video $4,500 $3,031 $4,500-FOnl 

i ne Database Brainfuse, sciencefl ix $2,250 $2,294 $2,294
Total $'t9,750 $16,242 $19,794

Local History Collection:
Documents & Digital Preservation $2,500 $334 $2,500
Conservation & Supplies $2,500 $0 $2,500

Total $5,000 $334 $5,000

Professional Gollection : fotal $250 $o $200
Serials (lncluding Bookpage): Total $12,450 $6,689 $12,000

DOGUMENTS TOTAL: $179,661 $126,777 $181,654

n')

Ja-



ffiBUDGET
FvhErrtatrl rE EC-Errl llpMFNT

I

FY 15/16

IIIJ
ACTUAL
4112t16 FY 16117

E/\r
Iffi^-+ mrinfenance I Contracts:.-

LH t"""*te"py machines,elevators,AWE'Thumper'

SelfCheck, SecuritY Gates, En
$14,700 $10,387 $13,000Total

icrofilm' tYPewriters

Total $600 $o $300

Irlarer Earrinrnanf'

Refrigerator for Park Branch
Office chair '2
Mail cart
Hand truck
Book truck
Teen Lounge furniture: rug, 6 chairs
Magazine files
AV cases
Barcode scanner wl stand
Printer for Reference
AWE headPhones

$545
$850
$350
$1 50
$300
$eso
$100
$350
$1 54
$310
$100

$9,094 $4,159Total
EOUIPMENT TOTAL: ${9,48,| ${7,459

ffiTALoGING FY 15/16 YTD FY 16117

(including lFM) $9,000 6,685 $9,050

Library Cards $800 $789 $900

CATALOGING TOTAL: $9,850 $7,474 $9,950
p.3

l2t>L,)



ffiBUDGET
ffiRMATIONSYSTEMS FY {5/16 YTD ACTUAL

4112116
FY 16117

@rs,Monitors,etc Total $29,000 $24,105 $29,000

Support & Maintenance:
Er.,lAralar Qal r rf irrnc l-ltref i na a nd Ma i ntgna nce $8,750 $8,300 $8,750

$o $0 $olcell upgrade
$1,000 $285 $400Other Technical Support - Cotmpglgr/Phone:
$9,750 $8,585 $9,150Total

Mobi lePri nasu bsCri ptiOn + one-time professional svcs fee $0 $1,025

'Falaaammr r n iraf irrn Provider:
Comcast, Redshift Total $2,4',15 ${,290 $7,204

Sffiare: rps*itch. Faronics Total $500 $263 $500

WeOsite Maintenance / Enhancement :

ed Patrons Calendar,

Library Anywhere, Author Alerts Ftrl 
_l

$2,200 $550 $1,500

i trt r6ntvtanott SYSTEMS TorAL: $43,865 $34,794 $45,854

CXPEUOITURES . PROGRAMS FY 15/16 YTD FY 16117

Proorams:
Youth Readinq Programs $6,000 $4,757 $6,000

YS Summer Reading Program $5,000 $'t,128 $5,000

Teen Proqrams $400 $1 5s $2,502 .

@ograms $1,500 $146 -$r,000
PROGRAMS TOTAL: $12,900 $6,186 ${6,502

CONTINGENCY TOTAL: $50o $o $500

TRATEGIC PLAN IMPLEMENTATION TOTAL: $7,900

r i's

, \*"/



T SUMMARY
BUDGET
2015116

YTD ACTUAL
411212016

BUDGET
2A16117

oE\rEll.ll lEC,
${4,450 $12,236 $16,000

LlfrI cll Y \rPEt
 A oa^r^ I :h $o $o $o

J^ ^f lJirl $21,000 $22,500 $21,500
$1,000 $2,609 $2,000

nor c llnrac{riafad l'lanafions $291,000 $29{,000 $291,000
$500 $s00 $500Donations

$327,950 $328,845 s331,000Total

EYETETINITI IPtr-q

Administration $52,866 $33,935 $53,999
$179,661 $127,078 $'t 81,644I.ltrnrrmenfs
$40,360 $21,897 $17,459Equipment
$9,850 $6,840 $9,950Cataloging

--$32,365 $34,794 $45,854lnfarrnafirrn Svsfems -L-
Proqrams $12,900 $6,826 $14,150

$o $0 $7,900ir: Plan lmolementation
Total $328,002 $231,370 $330.956

/',,/1\u,/./. .,4

TOTAL UNRESTRICTED RESERVE FUNDS: $306,514

p.5

,-{a)



*k,lelry*x*f

FTNANCIAL STATENIENTS

of

HARRISON i\TE NTO RIAL L TBR{RY

For the Period Ended APril 30,2016

I t-(Yy



HARRISON NTE NIORIAL LIBARI'
STATE}IE\T OFASSETS. LTABTLTTTES' A\D NET ASSETS

April30,20l6

CLIRRENT ASSETS
\&'ells Fargo Checking
Petty Cash V[ain
Petty Cash Park Brancir
LAIF
LAIF-Operating Resen''e
LAIF-Bradne.v
LAIF -Equipment RePlacement
LAIF-Er,.ans Restricted Fund

Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABTLITIES AND NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS
LAIF-Operating Reserve
LAIF- EquiPment RePlacemenl
WF-Designated Gifts
Broadband EquiPment Grant

PermanentlY Restricted
Unrestricted Net Assets
Net Income i Loss

Total Net Assets

TOTAL LIABILITIES A}iD N ET ASSETS

2i0.568.42
260.00
200.00

3 70.71 I .,+8

t7 5.127 .25
16.717.05

100.000.00
126.000.00

t.llr),61+.10

1.149.61-1.20

t7 5.t27 .25
t00.000.00

r 0-+.80
1 i7q 77

16.717.05
7-r0, 183.49

8-+.071.84

I . 1-+9.614.20

;-1

l. 149.6 14.20



ro
o-(,
trl(g
(L

ooo.

O'OO O\O
c.o\o
\orta-
N-

cO t-

.no\o ca

l3

r^'
sl
=lcl
6l:lolMI
15 I

=lcol

alaisln=l=l3

lolo
-l t | -raE ol =

=gol 5
- -l< cal K

I
I

o\ o o I.6 O \O l-od o rd 'l-i€ 3: 13di ..i -i lNN - ln
I

ai tr-O\ \O

afr CO
aa

I

EI;

I

i2-L4)vo.a-c)
E'-Eer4 i t: !.9?= , BOE.FA b>'-c)-ec);tq\Lar ;-IEES EEiE; _q.:-:iErji= iijzE g.Ei z= !riE=9 a;;;* "iiz -E:E:-Ei=A'tP =EEEi =4!i =Es5 E?+4;/ 1 nEE.q': i-*fr e ro'e

=?.-===-:=-d-i!r=YygtC='= i = = = t r * 5 -: -: -: = - A a i o >,$E=u5-88: :==== Ei:= E:{
=-;Ji+J= >+++t E==a c53 vvvooco-;---fis==vrtr-!a-=+ ]T*=. aroro ccrrr x^^l.lt.)aof.t33=!avs; =+++E =--= 

55= a u;=- = = = a ; =*+; -r
o-!Et#

a.l n
oi ' c/;tr)rr)

C.l Oqcl|-r) c.)
Oi^

I

lol-I't:rr
dl o

- 
!t> il 5

I
I

I\ol'rrrr
O alal =l.- uli <t

I

.9o
(Eo
o
(Eo
I

rEEE 9R
= o'=J CLqv<(.Efit9-EI :lJJ0r.6t
= o.PtrOoo =o-AF6)

= o=6>:-pt
rFo
o
Eo
(U
+Ja

r

.l toix- u



r ro
o
N
o
E,,
(E
o-

sl 6Q' ee33S a aS=AeA SOa I
=l $ o]
"l r , * ,r, '| I 

= J -,. i s ' ; ' ; ; ; - 
= = 

I I 
E f ' 'lEl Es HF'es t g*=E.ga 3ss I?^l -E :-'! J= s 

IslEr r

_t.E 6Jl
= bnlq elo,.l

6nqs s8g8 3 SG==EE 33!t\r:Yt, , ,=;;; ; =;=--- 
' r -i--+c.t'oS=€=:XUri -d-6$-ro=s.- -q K=is I it**=. 3- -3f- t'- 'o

\o l:,,1 , ,3Si,: 
= ===E;l 3 f -s il K 3R=- :l :i .c^

.- 9la <t
I

I

,{

.9,a
(E
m
o
(Eo
I

eEss 9R
= 6r'=J CL+.Efit
9EEi :uJg.5z
= o.?c0)oro =o-AF6)t o!(E>x-&n

o
+J
(,
tr
o
(E

a
? eE tr >.

E .EE! . B * E E'$; s ii= ..{. E I n^E n:
E E = =Sq li; * , 'sE 'Eo

6Eae gl+i* ie-EnE i'l;i=P E:

=EEE =EaEiE, " ?iii;I ;,r.iEE3 E,EE
=?.4 E E = r; i i * $E gi HAi E E .E E E E i *EE

= 
5: E iE S E i E FE 5 E 

= = 
53 i i s E 5 9 E i E i

?=IEEii+ EgEEia=EEEEEES=H=NFX
=E€EEEEE EEEEEEEEEEEEEEEH€CHE

ttllll

I

i L-4.,L I



7
lo
o
F'
(,t)
(Eo

'--o b o,;,n \o o. a Q co 9 F C'l Cl6+5osr:i.qeq'1nqqC'ai *ojri oi .o-joocal ..r'cU rb 5 o r-- io \o o G o v1 - S N'c.F5,;ic.r-:--,3t-- ^-VV!\o-rrtN:/vvJv

cn
c1
a..l

00

--OJ9UUUVJV=5555----oq?qqC'd-iiiooooooQQQOc5lo5o5c---ooolQOO5 .E i6,- 6 O - =,.r - N- - c .c cl
ato\Nr)lr)cqc\lr)Nc.lN

o\ O - cF\ rr t Or - Cl $ ql oo co6 + o. - a.i n ro o. \o r| o o\ o\'-; ;+s;:; o.5e+6i.c..i o\Nc.6oc.s.or)r-mi.i6^ qq*"1nvl ?*'ar--
r;J-$$r-alal
-o

\oai-t-o\\ooo
=c<j*<?,-rrv1rrJrrri oci -jooNrr\OrOC]-O,$$vl < (.) c'I
ca a'l

ovlooqn,09r
O(lIOrooo$\O f-' :f,.'6i r.i

6.)lol atal 6Sl .ial oo

-l o\(Jl 6r
Enl

=lcal

q
a.l
o\ol

U 9
do'o
\o t-- o\

t^t!i
-l .l

= aol Y?r€l s^t-l €

I , : lp!61O\ r) l<t
--l -i I ri

l"'

l*ls
-l +dl +

- =l drtil s
I

@
'a

tlloo

l-\o19
I ^io eul \dN EI --:

'- 9l caa<t
I

.9a
(Eo
Ul
(Eo
!

lEes 9R
= o'=J CLo-.rz <f.Efit9-EI ;lrJor.dr
= a.?cOoo =GOFo

= oil(E>:-&E
o
+,
o
Eo
(E*.a

EEI-u?E,o p == i=gQt or ji Er- -E:.; q.i >, , ? ..! Ei f >i7 a r. V Z i -
=o--p.oro-ca='-'=3"':: 'l^2.7 z va-=- u =7= S=.i!z7 E*;rE, !3E:E iEA;iEt5!l7 ztt;i'il 2i!ii,E|ElE -+cigi

= 
E !scEEi 

= 
i=======i====i==

= 3 e"a==- E gy=e=;=;*3-t=H=s
= : B==RB= I ====FiEEEEEEEEAU; B ====G= = 

uuuuuic€i<iuuuuu\o'o\cj
: = _E=-\oFs

--



g)
ot
lu
E"6
o.

ulas.a 606a6Q'e la :ao,a6ee la 3ilF.ir,Fr o5E<:-i= ,li x==I33=,13 c.llFr +.- c.i ' c.i + o<i t ro nt odla\ - - - e,l + t \o \o - n l= F' c't 'n ii i'i - rr lcl \oil=[BB 3--$d3u l+ =3"3i-" lE dHl l' l

- o c o lo o- q q - Q Q c c ,l? e
-- o O O O O O O lO O\o - o - 6 6 o rt l./) o\Erro-v6oolr---
;' J ; .d oi lc.i oi

= 
l"r ^rII
I

v^l \oqoq
c\oa.l c.ta.l oo
\o \o

N

- \o o\ o o o r.r o + < l- q t oo Y? r= Clc-.r61& +oci E+"1 , , ,lq 9::c?3?, ,ri ..i r.i .o ' S + - rr c.r c- lc't o oc 09 t:. '- 65 : U d5 i- d r, .. .. c. l$ $ t-- '\c \c l-- oo:-l 6"4 .^Ft.r"c'i oo^ lo" hqc'Iolr.{t-
o\ \o - * 6r $ \o Iyr - '{') F-

l.at-I
I

<.
=t
co\
a-l

- =3q=q lav^l V1 o ol cn _ laJ:o - - o - a l=^

= 
N-o- 

I

I

C.lO\\OO$od r'- t-'. \o oo
'-jJrrF._,6trrirr ooo$N O N--l -:'

O6ral=
.:- (Ja<

l= = = = 8 B s a t E 8el^' .- -i .{ - - o o o o o I I

I ro.l = H 3 5 - -, o o o !n Y't

= 
.51 - o -^ -- o^ ol v-i. rl q =l N

Cil c-r\O<..iNVNNal< col c\i -
I
I
I

,9o
(Eo
o
(Eo
l

rEEs 9R
= o'cJ CLqrz (f.Efit9-EI :uJ9.6== o.PC(l)oro =o-OFo
t oit(E>r-&E

o
o
Eo
(E

a

d

>:

.si9=fl, '=::c.:a* if; ? E*P .EH gt E= =i =ilrl ;F Er .i'-a='E= i-E== .i= i

;rE qEeE;EE;EaEa i*Ei*E5=t I ?e

ifiEE;;iiilHriii g=frfli!tEPE EE
EE$EEE8sEEEEBEE 

=EEgEEEEEE 
;=FE .E=F'EF€

3i



r ro
o
ro
og,
6&

$l$il

{q
q
cot
c.i

\o o.
'<ir.rj+ a--

-:N

\o
oct(tl=

a<

flaasa8lE I

l= ="= 
=l=EBli 5;a sr=ttl- 'r '-'I -l-

3 =q3 qle
i iRn Hli

l-
>:

.oo
rtr
trl
o
(Eo
I

nEEs 9R
= o'=i g<o.Efit9-EI :uJ0,.69
= o.ECd)oo =o-O?0,

= o!(E>:-#f
o

o
Eo
(E

@
* r*f; eai +ai= n /=E , EeTt=."Et

= 
E iS=- Eii=

Ls=i?E#= EEgI.Eer;EE al =- A=
i iii*;iz ii 

='i
-=-a=?Jrdi

F==E=F==:SEa isuuEsEEE 
===E 

i E
cEg9:

-d)'2

1u



NVolt'*,'b

HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY
BASIC FTNAI{CIAL STATEMENTS

FOR TIIE YEAR ENDED.IUNE 30' 2013

33



JJACPA,

To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel-by-the-Sea, California

Repont on the Financial Staternents

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Hanison Memorial Library ("Library")' as

of and for the year ended June 30-, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively

comprise the city,s basic financial statements as listed in the table of conlents. The prior year comparative total

information presented has been derived from the Library's 2012 basic tinancial statements and' in our report

dated Febru ary 25,2013 we expressed an unqualified opinion on the those financial statements'

M anag ement' s Re sponsibility for the F inancial Stateme nt s

M lement is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance

wit, accounting principles generally accepted in the^united states of, America; this includes the design,

implementation, and *uint"run.e of internai control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error'

Auditor' s Re sponsibilitY

our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit' we conducted our

audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the united States of America and the standards

applicable ro financial audits contained ii 1orrrr*ent Auditing standards, issued by the comptroller General

of the united states. Those standards require that we pran and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement'

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financiar statements. The procedures serected depend on the auditor's judgrnent, including the assessment of the

risks of material misstatement of the financial ,iut".n"ntr, whether oue to fraud or error. In making those risk

assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for lhe

purpose of expressing an opinion oi the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express

no such opinion. Ai audii also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of significant accountin;.sti*ut"r**ade 6y management, as weil as evaluating the overall

presentation of the financial statements'

!\, lieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

Opr.^.onS.

@A94568ophone(925)556-62t)0lfax:(510)2l7.5930
w\/w.jlacpa.com

3L(

-



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Nlanagement's Discussion and Analysis
For the year ended June 30, 2013

lVlanagement's Discussion and Analysis

This section of the Harrison Memorial Library's (the Library) basic financial statements presents

management,s discussion and analysis of the Library's financial performance during the fiscal year

ended June 30, 2013. Since this management's discuision and analysis is designed to focus o-n current

activities, resulting change, and currerit known facts, please read ii in conjunction with the Library's

basic financial statementi(pages 12 and 13) as wel as the footnotes to the financial statements

(pages 15 - 221.

Financial Highlights

At June 30, 2013, net position ended the year at$614'752'

Using This RePort

In June lggg, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No' 34'

Basic Financiar statements -- and Managentent's Discussion and Anarysis -- fo, state and LocaL

Governments. changes in statement No. 54 require a comprehensive one.-.line rook at the entity as a

whore and capitalization of assets and depreciation. 
- 
The major reconciling items necessary were

capitarization and depreciation of capital asiets and inclusio, of long-term liabilities' The Library has

5gr-^t.6 the single governmental fund (General Fund) presentation since this reflects the most concise

an. asily readable presentation for the Library's operations'

The annual financial statements include the Independent Auditor's Reporl, this management's discussion

and analysis, the basic financial statements, and notes to basic iinancial statements and required

s upplementarY information.

35
I



Flarrison Memorial tibrarY
Wanagement's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
lor the year ended June 30' 2013

Iinancial Analysis of the l-ibrary as a whole, continued

OPerating Results
For the year ended June 30, 2013 and 2Al2

2013 2At2
Increase

(Decrease)
Percent
Change

5Vo

97a
-627o

-6Vo

8Vo

927o

'197a

-197o

887o

Operatimg expellses:

Program revemule:
Contributions
Grants
Charges for services

Totat Frognarm R.everaue

Net operatimg exPemses

General revemue:
Interest

Total gemenafl revenue

Increase in met Positiom
N^t positiorn:

:ginning of year
End of year

1,225,641

1,296,356
4,050

18.098

1,318,504 1,218,7 6l
(92,863) (48,398)

1,273 1,519

1,273 1,,579

94,136

520.6t 6

49,917

410,639

1,170,363

1,188,8r13
10,764
19,154

9 55,278

107,5 l3
(6,714)

_____(t,o5o-
99,743

(44,465)

(306)

(306)

44,159

49.977 0Vo
l87o614,152 520,6t6 94.136

r fiscal zol3,program revenues were primarily from contributions, lvhich consisted of $1,318,504' General

)venues were primarily of contributioni from the city and the Foundation as well as CLSA grants'

he foilowing is a graphic illustration of revenues by source for the year ended June 30, 7013:

Revenues by Source

Contributions - -
$1,296,356

98.?.370

Grants
$4,050
0 3l7o

Charges for
services
$ 18,098
1.377o

$ 1,273
0.i040

3t,



Iarrison Memorial LibrarY
vlanagement's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
Ior the year ended June 30, 201.3

rinancial Analysis of the LibrarY

Net Position
Restricted
Urrestricted

Total

as a Whole, Continued

AnalYsis of Net Position
As ofJune, 2Ot3 and' 2Ol2

$ 46,852
567,900

$ 6r4Js2

of $94,136 is PrimarilY due

20L2
Increase

(Decrease)

46.852 O7o

207o

l87o
473.7& 94.t36

520,616 94,136

to program revenues exceeding program expenses for

20L3
Percent
Change

'he change in net Position
1e year.

'he following is a graPhic illustration of net position for June 30,2Ol3:

Restricted
$46.852

8Vo

Unrestricted
$567,900

927o

:CONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

r considering the Library's Budget for fiscal year 2013-2014, the Board of rrustees and management used

re foilowing criteria:

'he key assumptions in our revenue forecast were:

1. lnterest eamings should be approximately the same'

Z. Program."u.rr.,", are expected to be approximately the same'

lontinuing items specifically addressed in the budget were:

concem over economic budget reductions from contributors, especially in the Foundation

category, and avoiding further excesses of service costs over revenues'

1q\/J'

T



flarrison Memorial LibrarY
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Continued
Eor the year ended June 30, 2013

ECONON{IC FACTORS A}[D NEXT YEAR'S BTIDGETS AND RATES, CONtiNUEd

1. Administration - Shows a combined decrease of approximately 7.L07o, which is due to anticipated

operating cost decreases.

z. Documents and books - Show a combined increase of approximately l.3vo dtrc to an hcrease in

3.

4.

service costs.

Equipmen[ - Shows a combined increase of approximately 47 .57o due to equipment to be purchased in

support of Library Strategic Plan first-year goals.

Information technology systems - Show a combined decrease of approximately L8.4va due to a

reduction in the need for new equipment or enhancements to website'

Equipment
28,592 9.}Vo

5. Cataloeing and programs - Show a combined decrease of approximately 1.47o d:ue to a decrease in

program related costs.

lhe following is a graphic illustration of appropriations fot 2Ol3-14:

Budgeted Expenditures
Information
technology

systems 33,810
10.67o

Cataloging and
programs 24,200

Documents and
hookc l7R 1R4

7.67a

Administration
54,513 17.170

lontacting the Librarv
.his financial report is designed to provide our customers and creditors a general overview of the Library's
inances and to demonstrat"ih" Library's accountability for the money it receives and is allocated to it. If you

ave questions about this report, contact the Harrison Vlemorial Library, P.O. Box 800

larmel, CA93921, telephone number (831) 624-1366'

A
J I



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

37



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Statement of Goyernmental Fund Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances/Statement of Activities
I ihe year ended June 30, 2013

EXPENDTTURES/EXPENSES :

Administration and oPerations
Documents and books
Equipment
Cataloging and programs
lnformation technolo gy sYstems

City stalfing agreement

Total expenditures/exPenses

REVENUES:
Program revenues:
Contributions:

Carmel Public LibrarY Foundation
Friends of Harrison Nlemorial Library
Individuals/businesses
City of Carmel

6slifornia State Library
C ,es for services

Total program revenues
Net program expense

General revenues:
Interest
Reimbursements

Total general revenues

REVENUES OVER (UNDERI
E)(PENDITURES

CHANGE TN NET POSITION

FIJND BALANCES/NET POSITION:
Beginning of the year

End of the year

Governmental
Funds

Adjustments
(Note 10)

$

Statement
of Activities

$ 4i,006
113,2t6
17,684
19,211
29,A69

945,455

2012

fi 46,261
I 61 ,836
22,993
20,o21
1) 711

886,513

1,170,363

$ 4 r,006
173,216

17,684
19,2lL
29,069

945,455

r,225,641 t,225,641

281,000
19,000
50,901

915,455
4,050

18,098
1,318,504

(92,863)

28 r,000
r9,000
50,901

945,455
4,050

1,3 18,504
(92,863)

280,000
20.204

2,1 30
886,513

LA.T64
1 9,1 54

r,218,161
(48,398)

t,273 1.213 r,579

1,273 1.579

94,t36
91,t36 49.9'71

5 20,616 s20,6t6 4't0,639

614,7 52 $s6t4,7s2$520rq6

fhe accompanying notes are an integrai part olthese basic financial statements

NU



6Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 20L3

1. ORGANIZATION AND SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUI\TING POLICMS

The Harrison Memorial Library ("the Library") is a component uni[ of the city of cqme-1-by-the- Sea

(city) established and opened n Lg}g its vtain Library tuilding and expanded services by adding its

park Branch facility in 19g9 by city ordinance pursuant to statutory authority provided- by the

california Education Code, which has the powers necessary to establish, improve and_extend library

services to the carmer area. The Main Library building was designed by renowned california architect

Bernard Maybeck and financed by a bequesi from Ella Reid Harrison as a memorial to her husband'

california Supreme court Justice Ralph chandler Harrison.

The Library is govemed by a Board of rrustees appointed by the carmel.city council. oversight

responsibitity, trre ability to conduct independent financial affairs, issue debt instruments, approve

budgets, and otherwise influence operationi and account for fiscal matters is exercised by the Library's

Board of Trustees. The Library is a separate reporting entity for financial reporting purposes and the

accompanying basic financial statements reflect the asseti, liabilities, fund balances/net position'

revenues, and expenditures/expenses of the Library only and are reported in the City's financial

Statements aS a "blended" component unit. Blended component units, although legally separate

entities, are, in substance, part of the government'S op-.uiiort and so. data from these units are

combined with data of the p.i*-y government, which for the Library would be the City'

The financial statements of the Library have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles

-enerally accepted in the united States of America (SAAP) The Governmental Accounting Standards

-,,oard (GASB) is the accepted standard-seffing body for establishing govemmental accounting and

financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the more significant policies:

In June 7ggg, the GASB released Statement No. 34. Basic Financial statements - and Management's

Discussion and Analysis - for state and Local Govemmenfs. the Library has selected the single

goverlmental fund (General Fund) presentation since this reflects the most concise and easily readable

presentation for the Library's operations'

A. Repontimg EntitY

As defined by GASB Statement No.3g, The Financial Reporting Entity, the Library is not financially

accountable for any other entity other than itself, nor are there any other entities for which the nature

and significance of tfr"i, relaiionship with the Library arc such that exclusion would cause the

Library's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

B. Basis of Accounting

The fund-based financial statement columns (Governmental Funds column) on Pages 12 and 13 are

accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting and reflect balances for the Library's
General Fund and Endowment permanent Fund. These funds revenues are recognized when they become

measurable and available as net current assets. Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be

determined and available means the amount is collectibLe within the current period or soon enough

thereafter (generally sixty days) to be used to pay liabilities of the current period. Amounts, which could

rt be measured or were not available, were not accrued as revenue in the cuffent fiscal year' The

r[atements of Net position and Activities columns on Pages 12 and 13 have been prepared on the

accrual basis of accounting whereby all revenues are recorded when earned and all expenses are

recorded when they have bein reduced to a legal or contractual obligation to pay'

4{



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30, 2013

1. ORGANIZATION AND SLMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES'
Continued

E. Cash and Investments

The Library pools cash and investments from all frrnds for the purpose of increasing income through

investment activities. Highly liquid money market investments with rnaturities of one year or less at time

of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All other investments are stated at fair value in accordance with

GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reportingfor Certain Investments andfor Extemal

Investment pools. Market value is used as fair value for those securities for which market quotations are

readily available.

The Library participates in an investment pool managed by the State of California titled Local Agency
Investmenr Fund (LAIF) which has invested a portion of the pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit risk with the full faith and credit of the

State of California collateralizing these investments. tn addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-

Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to changes in interest rates.

F. Capital Assets

Capital assets are carried at cost or estimated cost if
rlued at lheir estimated fair value on the date donated'

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis using

actual cost was not available. Donated assets are

the following useful life schedule:

Furniture and fixtures
Automobiles
Office equipment
Computer equiPment

2. CASH AND INVESTNMNTS

5 to l0 years
5 years

5 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

investments at June 30.2413'
FDIC/

SIPC insured

The Library had the following cash and

I-ocal Agency [nvestrrcnt Fund (IAIF)
Cas h depos its
Petty cash

Total

I 79,869

Not rated

s 437,926
176J6

4fi

Fair Value

$ 437,926
r79,869

4ffi
$ 618,25ss 6tl,l52

,t1H-// ']\'-l

-



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30' 2013

2. CASH AND INVESTMENTS, Continued

Investment in LArF: LAIF is stated at amorttzed cost, which approximates fair value' The LAIF is a

special fund of the califomia State Treasury through which rocal govemments may pool investments'

The totar fair varue amount invested by a["public-agencies in LAIF is $58,828,474,533 of which the

Library had a balance of $437,926 wh'ich upp.o^l*ited market value and was managed by the State

Treasurer. of the total invested, 9g. l2Lo wailnvested in non-derivative financial products and l'88 To

in structured notes and asset-backed securities. The Local [nvestment Advisory Board (Board) has

oversight responsibility for LAIF. The Board consists of five members as designated by State Statute'

The fair value of the Library's investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial

statements at amounts based upon the Library's pro-rata share or trtt fair value provided by LAIF for

the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio)' The balance available for

withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by LAIF, which are recorded on an

amortized cost basis.

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Library operates uncler the ferms of a 2008 Memorandum of understanding under which the city
pays for all library personnel costs and the operating and capital improvement costs of the two library

buildings. These amounts were reported as city staffing agreement expenses and city building

-{penses in the Statement of Activities along wittr the offsetting city contribution amount in program

-venues.

4. FUND BALANCES/NET POSITION

Fund Balances consist of the following: N{onspendable, restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned'

Nonspendable fund balance consists of-inu"rt*"nts that will not convert to cash soon enough to affect the

current period. Restricted fund balance consists of resources that are subject to externally enforceable

legal restrictions imposed by parties altogether outside the government. committed fund balance consists

of amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by a formal action

of the Library,s highesi 1evel of decision-mit-g authbrity. Assigned fund balance consists of amounts

where intent is expressed by the goveming body itself o. u body or official to which the goveming body

has delegated the authority to assign amounts to be used for specific purposes. unassigned amounts

represent deficits in fund barance as reflected by the necessity to show nonspendable and restricted

balances in an amount greater than total fund balance. currently, the Library uses only the nonspendable,

restricted and unassigned categories.

Nonspendable
Restricted
Unassigned

46,747
r05

567,9N
$ 614,752

,.b
T



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Notes to Basic Financial Statements, Continued
For the year ended June 30' 20L3

6. EXPLANATION OF DIFFERENCES BETWEEN GOVBRNMENTAL FI'II{D BALANCE

SHEETSANDTTIESTATEMENTSoFNETPOSITION
,.Total fund balances,, of the Library's Governmental funds of $614,752 remained the same as "net

position" of governmental activities reported in the Statement of Net Position because a difference

wourd result primarily from the tong-teim economic focus of the statement of net position versus the

current financial resources focus of the Governmental funds balance sheets. The effect of the

difference is illustrated below:

Balance Sheet/Statement of Net Position

General
Fund

Reclassifications
and

Eliminations 1

Statement of
Net Position

Assets:
Cash and investments

Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts PaYable

Total Liabilities
Fund B alance sAlle t Pos ition
Totat Fund balances/net Position

Total liabilities and frmd
balances/net Position

6t4,752 6t4.752

6t4,752 614,752

6t4,752 614.752

6t4.152 $ 614,752

, when capital assets (land, buildings, equipment) that are to be used in governmental activities are

purchased or constructed, the costs of those assets are reported in expenditures in govemmental funds'

However, the statement of net position includes these capital assets among the assets of the Library as

a whole. Long-term liabilities iuch as compensated absences are not due and payable in the current

period and rheiefore they are not reported in the goverrunent's fundbalance sheet'

44
r



REQI,TRED S LIPPLEMENT ARY INFORMATION

4(.!-2



Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Required Supplementary Information
For the year ended June 30, 2013

BudgetarY ComParison Schedule
General Fund

For the Year ended June 30,2013
Variance

with Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

-.-U L;i-Filrt- ,ATl=uio, - (Nesative)

Budgetary Fund Balance, July l,20LZ S 520516 $ 5ZO'6t6 $ 520'616 $

Resources (inflows):
Contributions:

Carmel Public Library Foundation 280,000 280,000 281,000 1,000

Friends of Harrison Memorial Library 19'000 19'000 i9'000

Individuals/businesses l'2OO l"2OO 50'901 49'701

City of Carmel 987,576 955,228 945,455 0,773)

cranrs 4,050 4.050

lnterest l'000 l'000 l'273 273

charges for services 19,009 =l?'999 ' = 
1l'0" ,, ,9V?

Amounts available for appropriation @ lJ%n44 1,840,393 e4349)
lhanges to appropriations (outflows):
Administration 58'677 58'61'7 4l '006 L7 '67 |

Documents and books 175'g1g 175'g7g l'13'216 2'763

EquipmentLg'38119'387t7'6841'703
lnformation technology systems 4l'412 4l'412 29'069 12'343

Cataloging and program s 26'145 26'145 l9'2ll 6'934

City staffing agreement - 945'155 (9{l'455)

Totatchargestoappropriations @@Wl '"'oto
BudgetaryFundBatance,June30,2013@w4,44{$ot+,zsz$(85@

4b
r



WITH GO ENT AU,
STANDARDS

TNDEPENDENT AT.IDITOR'S REPOBT

To the Board of Trustees of the
Harrison Memorial Library
Carmel-by-the-Sea, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained tn Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic of the Harrison Memorial Library
("LLbrary"), as of and for the year ended June 30, 20L3, and the related notes to the financial

:tements, which collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated January 31,2014.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

tn planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, rve considered the Library's internal
control ovir financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's internal control'
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Library's intemal control.
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a

material rnisstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected on a timely basis. A signfficant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify

.y deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material
weakresses may exist that have not been identified.

7080 Donlon way, suite 204, Dublin, cA 94568 o phone (925) 556-6200 o fax: (i10) 217-39j0
wvwv-liacpa.com

tL-7tl



t$4*r*J.,'*.J {-{

oF
ooJ

(o
No-
(o
c/)

r
N
cY)
coN

NO
O'r-

t-
co(o
O.t

(0
00o-
$to

ceN
(o
c)

v
o
(o

l-o$
l-
o)l-
f-

o)
f")otO

l'-6I6t
(9
tO

lO
rO
$"
@

l--()
\tr)
N

cf)ro
f--
lr)N

f.-c):
O
f.-o"s
C\t

o
rO

o

F-NN
@oN

N
f--lr)

r-()ro
-t
N

(0
00

6I
c!
6t

oF
,g
F

(o
$O
to
cr)

col-
@_
rN

(ot- (o\t\t^
@
cf)

\f!+
u?
lO
o)

(o
tor
co
co

c)c)
rJ)

$
c1)

c)olr)
(o

$o
co-
ro$

00ri
oqo\t

lO
o)
c).
00

\t
f--o-
N
lt.-

t-
@
c{)
$N

o)o-
o
@..i:
c)N

\f<.
(o
(t)

(\t
(o

(o
ON

$oN
(o(os

r
r-c) cr)

@
rOo $o^

(\l

o
E
o
s

@
(f)
o)-
N

(o
tr)
@-

O
cf)

LOt-N
co

o)o)
6

Nro
ro^
N

Ct)$
co

ON Nr.-.t
(9
ct)
f.r-
c,

(\t
o)lO

{
6

(\l
N

N
@
f.*
IJ)

Oo)
@-

NOc!
@
00(o

N NN caN N @ i-(o 6t
o-
$t

o
=.9.
r

No-
cr)

N
co
@^
r

(o
f--

o)t
c)

00

od

LO
@
o)_
co

(o
Otr)

f--\t ro
o)(o

(e
c)N
lO

q
Cr)

t
o_
(o

f-N(o-
N

O)
r.o

@(o(r-
N

@
..o
@^
00

\t ON co
rr)

f- v oo

0)o)
(!
o
q)
o)
G

oo
o
o-
aF

C')q
lf,

I

c)o!
(&,

I

rO\o
ct)

I

u?
rJ)

I

o)q
I

t+
c?
00

I

@c
I

l4t
oq
N(\t

I

oq
(l,

I

o
ci

I

@o
00I oI

(o
oq
!+

I

G'
c"?
ro

I

rf)q
!+

I

ol
r{)

I

o)ot
tf

I

o
oo
o

c
o
6
m
o
6o
o
6

tdlcl
cn,I

N
6?

I

(s,ulo
i

r-cl
I

r(lq
lo

o)\o
.t

roc
I

zo
F
Jfot
6

.i
o
o(t
o
(E

F
o
s
o
o
=
ro

Co'F
.()
LL

-o
()
iL

I

oZ

aoc.N
(so(6

oo
(J

.9rc
=

J
FoFzI
J3ovo
F.Jlo

o
o
o
(g
U)

(E

o
G

o
.=o
g
o
-)

Co
.9
LL

o
.o
LL

Icoz

a
C)c.N
(oo(g

oo
I

.9'io
:f

J
FoFzo
F
J
:f,ot
6
u.lJz
IU

:)-)

t-oFzo
F
:fo
E,
o

o
oo
E
0)t
otoooil.

oo
Eo

o
(!
o-

o
.g

=fm
J

I

(,
.g

=:fco
-Co
C
GL

c0
lzL
(o
o-

Lo
.(tI
(UooJ

o.oO
a
0)
.o
L
q)a
-E
o

o
F
9.

zouF
o-

zIF
tFo
o
IIJil.zotF
o-

a
C
c)p
u)q)t
(soa

Io
I

_o
C)
EL(g
C)

@
C
0)p
a
C)t
=O
oL
o)
Co

a
cop(t
ou
C)

o
Lo
Co

ciLoo
,C
C
l

at)L(s
O
Lo#a

U)L
o)

=oLLo
m
L
q)
.E
C

o
zIF
ilFIo
IIJt

ot
IUoJo
o
E,

o
lro
:tt

Fo

Fto(L
IUt
J-
l-o21o3
=oCArz
e
t
m

=



iJt-ir .. i r '**l lt

l'-t.o
o-
lUil,
J()
.Ll-o2ig3

CA=-)z
t
N,
m

=

'l
rl !

oF
o
(E
J

f-f-\
$

rc)-

o
@st
(Y)$

N
c,',(o-
oN

c)
rJ)
N.
cf)
@

r
rO
O.
lo

(Y)
o)
Or-
@o

@
@

r
LO-

f-
CO

--
C) ON

c.)
O)
@
co

N(o
C\!..t

.if(o\
cr)N(o

O
@
o)^
tr)

O)(\I(g
6t
C{

oF
.g
t-

|J)f-
oo"
@
cf)

o
cr)
--

looo-osf

\fO
o)"
f-

\t
f-
rO-
o)f-

(o
q\t

\fo'
oq

-o

c)
rr)

oc)
-^r

(I)
o)
O^

O O O)N Nso.t
cA

t-
-

O)Nf-
Cl^)
c'.)
co"
(o

F-
-ro-
o)
F

o
=Po(!
J

(o(o
s^
cf)

o)(o ro
CY)
9-(9

(')
N-t^

roroc)
(o

f-oN o)oI
t\

-t ct)(o NON
O O o

co
(f)

|r)lr) e.)
@

O)
c/)
O)

@
@
eo^

o
=,9
F

.t
Cr)
@"
cf)

LON o)ro
(o.
(9

@Oq
N

cf)
@rt

6ti-(o-
C')

.t rf)N LI.)
O o C) cf)(o

N
oo o

CE
@
@o) 6

C,

oo)
([
o
o
ct,
ftt

oo
(,
o-
o

1l)
o?
(o

T

6lcl
lr)(\

I

@
u?
FI

-l(l
(o

I

i-\o)(9
I

(\l
e!
ro(\t

I

\tc
c?

I

o
o:tt

oqoo
I

\t
oq
(o(0

I

(0
I
r{)

I

o
o?
O)

t

q (0q
(o

t

ro\
(Y)
FI

at
IU

=outo
m

mzo
F
Jfou
o

ruoz
UIoa
TUil
IJ.o
lUo
J
rL

(Eoa
Io

-c
I

_ofo
EL(5
O

J
Fol-oFz
u.Ioq
IU
u.

ao
o
Jo
O
ot-o
co
G)

o

a-)o
O
c)L
C)
co
E
o)
(E
LooLo
C)

'C
:)

U)o1'o
Oo
in
Lq)

-!-

o

J
Fot-aFz
tuo
a
uJil,tzoz

U'
UJo
=tula
o
lU
E.F3o

M.oF
9.
J
ooJ

E
0)E-o

a
Eo
=6
=.9:rf

:o
o't5E
a
Eo
=6
C),6

-c
o_

0)oC
(6
E
Cq)

a
EoLoot-
o_

oJJ
C)
IJJzo
o-
TUJ
lUt-

.Yaon lza
0)o
t-o
,a
:tr
GooJ

lzooo
e
o
N)oL
o

aJJ
o
IIJzo
(L
IJJJ
UJF
J
FoF

o
op
oo&

_co(u
0)L)o

o
o
=oo
d.

I

oz
a.=
ct)

Eo
(s
)o.=

C)

at-o
=a

.:aaoo
o()
CoLo
ot

aoo,=
o
@
.C)o



1iIIrt

ol-
o
tEJ

vc)oo)

oN
@
@

f-
O)N
cf)

o)tr)
@
LO

(oI-o)i.-(\t

O)
@o)N

o)f-(o
O)

l-s\r
o)lf)
LO(o

ti-(0
C')6t

.toc)
Cf)\t

o

,9

cf)s
O)f-

@
cf)
cl)s

@
o)N

Nro
co

6
(Y)\f(\I

c/)s
@
N

rolo
@
$

roo(o
r
O
O)

sf
(*)r-

(o
N$

sro

o
=o(!

O(o(o
s
CON

ro(o
N f-.t

o
(^o(0

c)
N

(ooN cf)
(o(t).f

@t6)
o)N N

o
=,9

oo(o()
o)N
cf)

.t-t N
1r)

(\(o
ro

o)ON co
cr) olr)

(\loo cf)
oo

o
c')
(E

o
(,
(E

o(,
o
o-
o

@q(\
I

(3
+$I

(o
u?

I

trl
(osf

I

@o
(Y)

-I

@
@+

T

r+
oq
o)r+

!

!.()
c,l
ro
c{,

@rq
u)\t

,

r()q
Y

t+

o;(v)

o)q

o
TUo
iluo
lUoz
IUt
uJII
uJE

iio
o
=@

o
o
oo
o
oo
o
o
oE

va
G)o
ooE
c)LolFo
M

lla
o)o
U)oo'=
Lo

cf)
.C
Jo

lzaoo
Lo
.aI
(6oo

vaoo
o
(g

=()
o

azo
F
@tufo
IJJoz
IU
tr,ul
l.L
UJt
J
FoF

tio
o
=o

o
o
oo
o
o
(U

E
o

.Yaoo
o
C)-ot-o
ot

lzaoo
ao
.9
t-oa
E
=o

lzooo
t-o
,a
:tr
6oo

lza
0)
c]
Co
(g

=o.=
O

azo
F
U)
IJJ

=ozo
tr

=g,
olLz
J
l-oF

2
oJ
&.

t
m

=M,
LUl-z

ao
L(s
L
-o
=t-o
o
o
JJ
()
mo

ao.C
NL

_o

=L
G)

o
EoL
JJ
O
mo

F
u,o(L
tut,
#pl- (J2^o3
=oCUtrzg
il.
il,
m
J



i!
It'

LO @o o @o

v LO(o O LO(o
r

N o).t O o)tt

F.
Cl)

O N
O')

@l'-

b-i-\N
1()

o
o
+t

oFo
=U'o
o

X
an.=
.J)

CooF
x
a
=a
_@CoL
E
.C
O

UIoz
oz
lIJFl-

91z
tUftoJ
o
Fo

llJoz
oz
IIJ

z
IU
tuF

o

IUoz
oz
UJ

t-oF

oF
ooJ

f.-f.-
@o)

(Y)
No-
N
LO

$N
cD_
LO

@o
c)^
cr)

c/)
cr)

r
N

tto o
g

lC)
(v)(o

tot+
@.

f.*N
ry

(\t
C\ot
N

o t
cf)$t

tr
6.)

(0
o-

\f roN

oF
.9,
F

o)NNo
Nro$-
@
$

N\t
N.v

@
cr)
00^
N

c).t NN lo(o .t(o
o_
r

o)o)ro
c)(o
(o-

ro
ry

(0
o-
N

O) lo$ o)c) (o
lo-

ce oo

o
=o(g
J

co
c.)
@

o)(o
(o-
co

r
@r

Io
r
N

N Z
q

s N (0 O)(o Nlo NN
\tro lo

$t(9
O o c/) (Y'

@
O o

o
E
o
F

N
CD
@

Oc)
N-
c)

@oN
f--NN

N z
=rq

s N (0 s roN O)N o)o) €c{t\l
O o N (o

(Y)

o
o)
o
o
(,
o,(!

C)oLo(L
oF

(o
u?
(Y)

Nq
l()

I

c?
6NI

N
+

I

o
c?o
co

(o
\\l e?oN

lo
a?
r.c)

q
ro

I

ct)q ro
o?
to

I

@o,
.t

oq
c,

!

ct)q
i-lt)

coq
$t

(9q
ro

oq
to
C{I

(v)
o?
(9
(Y)

F
F.o
Io
N,

IIJaIzotFolu
I.IJ

oof
o
ct
Eoo
(t,

-o

=I

s
-ct
(L

:.:(t
o
oE

.9,

o
(!
6)
U'
,9
o
o
-g
IU

c,of
iI
=3
-o
L

oo
(E

o

oo
(E
o-
.oo

=
=
o
oof

(go
oL
o
=0,);
oo
(J(!
o-
o
o
-o
E
z

=.9,

o(L
o
=.9
o
o)
(6
o-
o
os
E
z

o

o

o

o
=t(,od
o-
o
IJJo
t
IJJo

o

a
E([
L
C'o
o-
o
E
-oa

a
E
(o
LooL

o_
CS'5
ooa
o
.C-o
(6
C)t
L
o)
E
c
Ja

a
E
toot.
o.

FoF

o
E(!
Uo
o-

oo
(6
ro
o

iloL
:
.C
O

Io
E
-o
U)

CoL

=sO
I

.q()o
o-a
o)
.C:o
(sot
L
C)
E
E
f

U)

tuoz
oz
TU
F.F
g)z
lIJto
J

=o
FoF

UIoz
oz
lIJFF
FJf,o

Fol-

UJoz
oz
IIJ

=
&,oo
x.
o.o

FoF

oo
ot
lU

e{
I

o)to
l,L
o
=toot(L

TIJoz
oz
IJJFF

Fot-

o
=tootr
IL
F
fo

'Joz
oz
tJJF

oF

a
=troot(L
z
UJ
UJ

i'ioz
ozulFF

FoF

Fto(L
lut
J-I-l-o
2r.,o3
=oc(r, =--)z
t
t
m

=



.t
l-{

(t,
.uJ,JF
Fo
>

N
cf)r
N

ol-o) N roo
-^r

No\t
rr)N
Lr)

tJ)roN
,.r)

o'=
IU

rEo,F
>

N
cf)
N

coo)N
(o.t loo

-
cf)o.t

\t
cf)lr)

(f)r(or,
ao-r't

IJ
nJt
5oo
ot!J
E

No) O
@

(o (o l-N N ct)
c\I

aq)
,E

roo()(o

_o
-i-
o
-o
.C
'tf,
o
-c

Flog
t{)(o

oult:
fao
o
=lJJF

N
O)

o)or
o) (o f.-c! N |r)!t

N
cf)
oo
cq-
Oro

o,v
oN

N
cf)root\

oF
@
@

-C
t-
o
E
,a
-c
N

oF
IJJoz
z
IIJ

z
<
=tu
U)

00

F
o

s
O)

-C
Co
E
.2

oo

a
lIJo
=illlJa'j
oz
o
UIF

o
lUooJ
F
o
U'Yoo
m

u
1-
o
o
F-oozoJo

(,
E
J
m
L
(U
t-
-o:
C'o

J

I

(u
L
-o
=.C(J
C
(U
t-m

-:zLo
o-

oJ
UJ

a
=TUF
J
FoF

ci
IU

a
IU
F
F-

FoF

TUoz<2
uJFz
=uta
m
F.<o

.o
o
(o
t-
C'
.9
_o
in
o
oE(s
ac
.o
o
o)L!-o
O

ooao
-o(u
Go
Eo
=od

!
0)

c)
Co
O
o
oooaot-
o
E.
a
o)

tr

()
'C,
o
(u
oO
o
-o(UE
(U
o)
x.
oC
C)(6

o

<,oa(soJ

q)()coL
o)
ot

a
G)o
Loa

-C
=o

?

=-o
.9o
J

ooE
J
FoF

Fto
o.
lUt
Ju)
I=-l-o21OP
=oU'52-s
E,

u
mf

-r j-



il'l

oF
U'
a!J

q
@o)

q
ON
c.)

qsN
q
oolr)N

q
O)rt

q
o)sfo

s
LON

rorO.t
LOt- o

O)o\t
(o
@N

rso(o
t(ooN

too
6

oF
,2
F

oq
o)

oq
(ooc\

oq
(o

oqs@
oqor

o
u?
l{)
(O
rl)

o)
(Y)
N

@
f.-
s

ON$N

f.-$Os
N

LO$.t
LO

@
O)$

(9
o)(c'

f

o
=o
.(E

oq
O)

oq
(o

oq
C\t

oq
@

Oq
N

olO
t\t

(o ssc)
O
N

$tr)ro
o6l

O)$N
(o
N rO

N

o
=o
F

oq
o)

oqor
oq
N

oq
N

Ood
(,(,
o)
Cr)

LO osc)
o)t-N

O)
f.*N

o (o
f.-(\

cf)s o)
-f

oo)
(E

o
il)
.E)6
o,o
(,
G
oF

o
o?
o)({)

I

(9q
loc)

I

q
o,

@q
@(\I

I

u?
@i-I

O)
c?
(v)
cY),

o)
lo

I

(oq
$

t-q
(o(\l
r--
ci,

loq
I

(o
c!
C\lo

l.

r-
oq
o,I

(\l
a
F-(\I

I

tt
c?
t+

I

ail.3oTt
UI
lUFz3Jo

g
o
(6
JoL5

Lo
,oI
(gooJ

0)oC
0)Lo
ot

a
o)o'=
Lo
U)
G
.o
-c()
o)F

@
0)o'=
l-
o)a
Jo

oJ
FoF

TU

e.o
N,
UJ

o

a
Co
(s
LP
.2(,
C)t
oL
(s

o_

a
:foY
C)o
-C,O

a
lUot3o
U'
IJJ
u.
J
Fg
o
le
luJl-IFlo

a
folzo
c)
-CO

a#fo
-:lo
G)
-Co
.9co
o
C)6
(E

oF

ula3IIz
to

ozotF
&
Yo
IU
J-o
l!J
lJJo

Lo
_o

=C
(E

a
0)o'=
L
0)a
o

J
FoF

r()rON
o
c.)
0)C
=?

,,] )

Fil.o(L
tut.
J
J-Fzo
=Iz
u
M
m
J



t*
ffi,cii,ru,4 L

j
9
L

oF

l-
@
O.
o)N

o)
O)

co

N
f--(o-

NN
O.
N
co

o
CC'o"o
@

o.)
(o
@
N

@
f--v^
$

t-*vN
(o
c)
c)_()

or-(o"
.o
(Y)

€lO
@"

@ON
$o)s
co

r
c.)
o)r

t-N
cf)

o(o
g?
(o

r^()

ryO(o

O
rr)
co-
c')

o
c/)
@

$NN.
o)-

o
d€

oF
.9
F

(o
$
v_sN

@N
cf)
lr)

CE()
=t:

LO
f--
o)
ro
N

6toc!
r-(0

@ro-
O)r

o)
LO
o_
N

co
rr)
N

O)-O)_

{Io
(0N

(.o
ro
eo-
s)
o)

@ rOO
ct)

$roOlr)
NNf.rro

o
co-
@

co
cr)
u)|r)

o)(o
f.--
(o

o
=o
c,J

sf
@$-
N

Or
@-
r

cY)oN
co
LO
o)_
N

o
rOa

o
@
O)_
r

rr)Oc)
rN N$

cr)

@{(0-
t\

@
C')o-o

cr)
c.)

(o
O)$

(o
o)t rO

@

6?
@

$s$ro
F-(')
o)-

N
|J')

aO
O)

o
s-r-

o
=o
F

t-
lJ)

C.i

r
@
ro-

LON rr)6
f---
N

co
o)6-
(o

NN\
r

coO
C\T

(o \t
o.)N

i-(osl
N

lO
coq
o)

-
(o
c, c.)

f--
$

o)o(o
O)
@$-
rO

(o
O
Lo-

oo,
(!
o
o
E"(!
o)o
oL
oF

(o
o?
lo

I

€\$l
I

c)
({)

I

@q
CC'

I

ot-
I

lC)
u?€6t

I

ct)efe(9
I

r4l\f{
(l,
u?
(.o
(\t

I

o,(o
€
C{I

I()(l'
oNI

c!
cr)$

a

loq
c\t
(.cI

I

(9\
(l)

+
N

oc!
6t

oqoo
I

oqoo
i

\st
l

oqoo
,

o
o
r)
(g
o
(!

o
(g

o
.=
(-)

=E

Co
.Olr

Co
.o
LL

I

Coz

ao
C.N
([o
(g

o
0)
(J

.9of

J
FoFzotr
=og
o
FJfo

@

o
o
(E
o
G

o
fit

o
o
([,

o
-)

o
oir

E
.o
.o
LL

ICoz

a
0)
C
N
Cgo
(u

ooE

.9
J

J
FoFzIF
3ot
o
uJJ
z
UJ

3-)

.j
oFzIF
J
ov(J

U'
TUot
=oatut
J
ts(,
ot
ul
J.

o

o
oo
J

ot
c,tooot.

oo
o

o
(!
G

.E

==CO

J
I

o)

=:l00
E,oE(!
L

co
llL(!
o_

Lo
,aI
(EooJ

o_
o)o
ao
.o
Loa
fo

J
FoF
Eo
=zo
d.F
o-

zo
F
J3ot
6

ITJ

uotr
ul
o

a
Co
(g

.a
o)o
t_
co
L
(s
o-

a
f
l<
c)
C)

.C
O

a
=o
-Y.
OoE
O

a
=ovo
c)
o
.oc
L

oq)
o
(0
oF

(o
oc{
O
co

F
E,o(L
LUt
J
Fzo
=c!)z
u.
t
m
J



oF
oI

rr)
f--\r
Cq

(o
c)
O^ -6

6i(')

f.*(os-s
@
coo-
(o(o

(o
N\
cf)

-(t
c\l
$@

tr)\t (o
c)
O^

(o\t
@

O O o)Nr
@\t
{
co

@
LO
ry

(o
c)(o

(ol-
cq-

@
-\
@

o
F.

,9
F

$(o
(o-
rr)N

O
@ $o

(o
N

(o(o
O.
N

O(o
Or-

rr)

ON
o)-
N

(o\f
a-(o(0

ot o
@
cf)

@
o)
l---
N

rf)
f=lr)

lr)\t
1r)
or

tro
=o(6
J

co
r()
\N

$
co

No)\ht

sO
c.)^

(o(o
1r)^
lr)

$f-
co

\f$6{
i-

t $c)
O)(o
N

(Y)
ro NN F

loro:l:

o
=o
F

srr)
Lo-
N

Nlo (0o
@
C\

ON
ry

@N
LO

o)(\I
ro
(o

\f Nrr)
(o
@N

(f)
cf)

(t)
O)q

ot)
(E

o
oo,t!
oo
oq
o

(Y)
e!
cr)

I

C{
c?
(v)
(I)

I

(\Iqo
C\I

N
u?o6t

I I

(\
e?
fo(o

I

oqoo
I -ci

o*t

o
o
+t

oqoo
I

lo
oq
@

I

o)FI+r()
I

oqoo
I

o
c?

I

oqoo
I

U)
u.
IIJ

=oMto
m

trlzo
F
Jfo
E,
5

TUoz
UJo
a
IUt.
Lo
ulo
J&

(tr
o)a

Io
.C,

I

-of
0)
E
L(s
a)

J
t-oFaFz
lUo
U)tut

ao
5
#
)o
O
o!-o
o
Lo
-co

C
=
(.)

oLo-c
Ec
(I
ccL
c
C

.gc

aoEo
O
oi!
Lo
o

J
FoFoFzuloa
IU
E,

Izoz

a
IUo
=t
LU
U)
:Eo
UJtrF
o

toF
9,
J
ooJ

EoEE
a
Eo
=6
--.9o

io
0.)E
(J

a
E
c)
=
(E
.9a
o_

0)o
(UEt-
o

a
E
(g
oo
o_

(r,
JJ
o
LUzo
o-
lIJJtuF

_v.aoo
aoo'=
Loa
)o

lzaoo
o
.a
=G
OoJ

lzo
C)o
Co
(5
f,o.=
O

U)JJ
o
ulzo
o-
IIJJ
TUF
J
FoF

o
op
ooN

.Co
(tro!-

P)o

o
o
'6
ot
I

oz
o
--a

o
(!
fo.=
O

a
o
=a

.-aoo
oocoLo
ot

J*

Ft,o
TL
ul
u.

J(o.Ll-o

OP
=E9D&z
g.

&.
m

=

" r')



_r

O
@

N(o
-

oo)
co

Nv o)Or
(9
€o6

o
@o,
-

O(o c)
CO

NNc)
(o.t o)

O)
o(0t-

N$to-
rF

cor f-r co(D N 1r) oo)

$r cor r
c.)

s r @I\

(o

coo
ot)
L
oo(!
c0
(g
t!o
o
(!o

t

o
o?

I

$
I

(\lq
6) o;I

60
o?
(v,

I

noI

zc
F
frFg
g
ug
z
c
o
F
o

lsllcto)alp'-l Agl#
al aol0)t l'=-(Ulo
4la()l=
-cloYIO
Bl aElbtl=tloolE

>'lotLI
o-r I€lCIol>l€
o-l olblo

I 3IElclo
l= l>

at
CI
o-t IEl'a,1
c)t
C)

aI-
c)

=oL
om
o
-C#lo

laIt
lu.t..laJIJ

sle
btal-lc,
z14olo
F ll!
L< to
Itr l+t

E13
llu loIE IF

oF
o
c,

r.f)

f-(o

rr)$
co$

fr-O
rr)N

o)Nrr)
l-'-

(J,
o)o
N

-NsN
@(,
c.)t

()
$
LO

\t
O
cO

(o
(9
ro

co(o
co

vN

o

.9

N(o
@\r

f-tNN
Ol-
(f)
@

o,h-tlO
o\t
co

o)\fNr

t-o
LOr-

(o
o)roo

f-(o
N

C')\r

o
,=
, al,(!

O
co(o

co(o
N

r
co

CO
co
@

o(o
o)

coON O O)
cr)

C')tr)t-
lfo N

co
rr)r

.o

=v,

O)N(o
c)l'-

(o
c,')
@

@o)(0
rr)oN

@
O)

f-F.t\
o
@o

l-
cr)

rr)

€)
E')

G

o
o
E')(!
troo
oGaF

Ol
u?

(\I
I

6rc!ort
I

oqoo
I

I- (v)q
(.o
$lI

oq
\f$l

I

(',1

NI

oqoo
a

(Y)
a?
(o

I

(\tqo
CY)I

1r,n(o(\t
I

(o

c;(\

a
UIo
&,
LUa
tuoz
IIJu
TIJlr
tut

iil I I Iol I I Ibl I I I

El I I l<l llol l*lCl lol.el lEl;
Hl;l; l8
*lalHle
Elfil.ol=ElElElr

lelbtdlE
l# l" l> l-.,

I

tatlzltollrla
luJl=lo
lurItl.lz

EIHo luJ
- lLL
X lru.Eltr
El-r
tdlf,
l5 lottF

iil
orl
0,l
Ba

o
o
oo
o

L.e
lcrls
lLlo
Itr

I

Ya
o)o
ooC

I a.rILlo)tr
I o.t

ld

lza
Oo
a
0)().;
oa
-C
=o

llaoo
o
a

l-l-loIOlo
lJ

lalzloItr
l@
Itulflolz
leIF

;lg
El5
C III.9.t2
Sl-rdt<r- lF5loIF

2
oJ
u,
d
lmIJIt
I lrJIFl2

la
I o-t

(, lL0)lN.-tL
Els
-E IJJlo)
- l-c
Pl5

t6l elol9l:l:
I -.r I -.r

F-t.o(L
Lut
J.o!st-o2ro3E;
@z
t
il,
m
J

,'l:



O)
-

O O)

o)NN
$(o cr)

o)
cv)

O
@

s(o s$N

sN O $N

(o
e\l
1()o

o
o{t

aFo
=aa
o

O
aC
q)
oF

:-:
0)g

=-CO

uJoz
oz
UI

!)z
UJtoJIo

ol-

UJoz
azt!

z
IIJ
UI

o

UJoz
az
UJ
F.F
J
ol-

L

oF
u,(!
J

$(o
I{)
6

co|r)

-$

@|f)
co-

(o
O)
c)-
c{

lJ)
c/)

00 coto o)
co

C{$l$
co
(.r^

co
o)o, co

N

ct) lo \tc) €{
eo-

(\l oo

oF
.2
F

LO
@
@(o

$
co
f--_
N
co

tr)
$-
c)

$o
O^
N

ro
co

s o,\f o)(o @
o)
co

O)
@*-

(o
N ro

fo-
6t

o) l'- vN (Y)
(v)
to^

(o !+

o
=o
fi,J

O(o
N

co
@
co_
cf)

$
@
c.)

t-
o)

N
Eq

ro (o ro() (o rNr
()
(o

(0ft
Cq

(Y) N N r lo

o
=,9
F

sot*
ro
Lr){-
co

s
@
cr)

t-*o
N

N z
=q

r rl) $
O)

r
r |..-o €

$l
cr) € O o

ool
C
(E

o
ot,)
(E

o)o
oL
o

q
o)

I

(,
o
C!

I

l{)no
I

(l)
co
@

I

oqo
(\l
e.l
c{c{I

to
u?
t-

I

to\€
o)q
t4)

I

tn
ct)

I

(v)q
$l

N
o

oqo co
g)

!

a
o)NI

$l\
co

oqooc{

oq
rfIt

>t

tro
ot
IUaIzotFto
lruIJ
luJ

6.)o
f
q)

o.
Eoo
(g

I

:e

o-

(E

o
o
.9,

o
tg
0)

U)
.9
o
o
-9ul

oo:f
iT

=.9
=(L

oot)(t'
o

o
E"
G
o-
-oo

=
=
o
oof,

(tlo
o
o-

o
=.9
o
0)

(!
o-
o
og
E
z

=.9,

q)
o-
o)

=.9
oo
IE
o-
o
o
-c,

z

o

o

€)

o
=too
E,
o.
o
UIo
il.
tuo
fo

a
E(!
oo
o-
0)-c'*=
Loa

a
E
(g
!
o)oL
0_

.qo
0)oa
o)(-
=(g
c)t
o
E
E
a

a
=il.oot
o-
J
Fo

o
E
(g

UIo
L
oo
(!
E
o

-
0.)L

=O
I()
E

o
U)

HIol
LIEI
el-l

I

.qoooa
C,)

E(!
q)t
0)
E
E
=U)

uioz
oz
tuFF
t!)z
tu
E.oJ
I
O

ol-

dioz
oz
tu

FJfo
J
FoF

IJJoz
oz
UJF

=t
(9
on
o-
o

FtoIF

aoJot
UJ

6l
I

o)toll-
U)

=
x.oot
lo-

UIoz
oz
IJJFF

FcF

o
=toot
o-

Jf,o

fioz
oz
LlJFF
J
FoF

a
=toot.(L
z
IJJul

IIJoz
oz
UJFF
J
Fot-

(o
r
ON
o
f.)

Fg.
oL
lU
E,

J
I
F.zo
=91z
E&
E
m
J

-, ]



T

F
u,o
o-
LUu
iEl-O2N9BE:
9rFzg
u,
&.
m

=

otuJF
Fo
F.

o')r(o
coc)
r

ot- oo)o-
r

(o(o
co

O
O)
cr)

@(o
@^.t

a
=TJJF
oF

O)
(o

cf)s$
N
O)

Oo)O.
(o(o
c.)
o
O)
co
ooo
rO

a(,)9
_o
_c.
o
-o-
;
o
_c.

IJult
foo
oulJ
E

o
@

l-O $ (o (o l-tr) rf)orr)
oo
,F
rf)f-
00c)(o

rO

@"
(Y)(o

o
utg.
5ao
a
=lrJF

o
CO

00N s- CO

- (o f-rf) (oNlf)
@
c.l
o)$

(o
o)
ryc)N

t
rO
O)(o

oF
s$:_l-
Co-C
.a

$

oF

UJ(Jz
z
IJJ

z
=IIJo
m
F
o

r
co
i
-o
E
,a-
-f

U'
IUo
=ttu
U)
J
Iz
otxF

o
IUoo
F
o
aYoo
dI

UJF
o
oFooz
6Jo

o)
.C

==co
.(g
L
_o

=
'(u

I

-
(u
L
-o
=|-
(J
C
(o
L
mv
N
o-

oJ
tu

o
=IIJF
J
FoF

o
LU

aulJtF
J
Fo

IIJoz
z
IUFz
=UJa
m

F
o

.o
o
(E
L
o)
.o
E
m
o#
oE
(u

a
o
ooL
Lo
O

aoa$
_o
(6
(Eo
Eo
=od

rco#t-o
Co
O
->o
()oo-aoL
0)

o)
o)o6
(u
C)
o
-o(oE(got
o
.=Eo
(E

o

Eoa
(troJ

oo
C()
t-
o)
c)t

o
0)o'=
oa
_c#
=o=:J

13
.9E)

o
(I)
E
J
Fot-

ao
tr



T

oF
or(!J

q
rO
q
O
@

q
Ns
q
$lr)
o
N
q
o)t\st

f-(:)r
O ONo)$

O)N
co

o,!+N(o

oF
o
t-

oq
(o
cf)

lr)c!
O)c!

Oq
(o
$

oq
cf)

t!+ o)
'J)

N
O)o$

O)o)(o o)
t

co
=o,(!
J

c)q
o)N

oqo
Ocs

Oq
f--

Oq olo
F(o

o O o{- (o N(ot

o
=.9
F

oq
coN

oq
t

Oq
O)

oqo
o c.) No)

cf)

(0
lr) @sfsf

o6)
.G

o
oo)
.E

c)o
o
o-oF

q
N
(\l

oqoo
I

fo
e?oct
!

o)
1l)
I

oq(,t-
oqoo
I

6e€ro.t o
o*t

(Y)
oq
(o
I

on
$I

C9
e?
co(\

1

ot.fo
t
TU
tuFz:)Jo

-o
(E

fo
5

-o
.a
-
6oo
-J

o)o
oLo{Fot

ao()'=
oa
(U
.9
_cooF

a
0)
.o
L
c)a
.C
Jo

aJ
FoF

[i
U'f
TLz
t
m

x
LL
UJozg
oo

azot.F
o-vo
tu
o
t!J
UJo

(s
L
-o
=r
'(s

a
(.)
.9
a
0)a
o
.J
FoF

(o
ON
O
co
!-o-

t-il.o
o-
ru
u,

JxFzo
=g)zg
E,

&o
J



HARRISON MEMORIAL LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES
Staff RePort

June 22,2016
Harrison Memorlal Library Board of TrusteesTo:

From: Janet Bombard, Library Director

subiect: consideration of a request from the carmel Public Library Foundation to hold

the annual oonoisalute event and serve wine in the Main Library on Sunday'

March 5,2017

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:
The carmel public unrary Foundation is requesting consideration of its request to hold its Donor

salute event ano serve wine in the Main Library on sunday, March 5,2017 '

The carmel public Library Foundation Donor salute has been held annually in the Main Library since

1gg4. The event is held every year as , *rv of extending the foundation's gratitude and appreciation

to its donors for their suPPort.

city policy c8g-47 requires city support groups to obtain city council co-sponsorship of events at

which alcohol is served. The policy arso Jtates that requestsior the use of Library facilities shall be

forwarded first to the Library Board of Trustees for review.

After the Library Board of Trustees approves the request, it will go before the city council for

consideration and aPProval.

60



CARMEL PUBLIC
LIBRARY FOUNDAIION

|anet Bombard & Library Trustees
Harrison Memorial LibrarY
Sixth & Mission
Carmel, CA 93921,

June 16, 20L6

Dear |anet & LibrarY Trustees,

TheCarmelPublicLibraryFoundationrespectfullyrequestsconsiderationofourrequestto
hold donor cultivation event in the library this year:

Sunday, March 5,2017 at 3 to 5 pm (to be held at the Main Library): Donor Salute'

we plan to serve wine at each of this event. we are eager to obtain whatever approvals are

necessary. please let us know ttre necessary steps inv;lved and if you require any additional

information or documentation' ,

Thank you for your consideration of our request'

Amy Donohue
Executive Director

po. Box 2042,Carmel-by-the-sea, cAg3g21 tel (831) 624-281] fax (831) 626-1788 wwwcarmelpubliclibraryfoundation'org

$ erlntua on loo% recycled PaPer' G'i



?i
5'

>
D)

0)o
q)
N.)o
@

zof
Ill

c)=o
=

-n
6'*o
=

(-l

o
=o
a
o
il*o
L+
lq)lrlalsllo
lFl^
lol=
114

>tolclrl{l
ol
nlolC

-{
6z
{o{
Ll-

>lCIo-l
-.1ol
=lo-l
rolol

<lotolollNl
-.1JIolal

zo
!

T'I
6'
=o
=

rl
6',
=o

>t
cLlcl
ol
ocil
=io
-{
!)
aq)
o
lo
IJlut

QvoCr
-{6z

0j

o
j-

rl>l{lnlolzl
<l
al
=l+to
ir

o
C
:t
U)oa
oo(,
Uoc

T-oo
o_

:r
6'
oa

T
q)
ax
@-0)fo5
E
C
*
=(o

-
t-
@
E.
4
f,

!q)

o
so
oo

nl(!lolol
-l<tol
nlolc!
oo
o

-lo
OJ

a_oo
ol.o
o:tooxoc
(t

o
fooxo
C
a

ot+lIIrfllrlol
ol

7
rnaoCno
m

l@

o5ooi{oc
a

T
0)-o
:f

flo
r3
@'

!)-.ofa

o
rnno
4
m

c)t
vlot
CIrl
6z
{o+
!:

CI<tmlzl
F]
m
o
fio
C

{
oz
o
!:

I(0
(rl

I

N
A(.)

Io)o
L^,{

I

(,
boo

Iot){
Noi)(lI

CDN
io
@

(,(rl
b,(^,

Io)
io

IA
too,

IN(,sor

IN
bo(,r

INf
Ol

Io
ao

I(,
.N

IN{
b,

I

(},

I

6
in5

I

aoN

I

(n
in

I

ct)
it,l(o

+o
1'o5oo
0,(o
o
o
o)
(o
o

CDJ
to -cr,

C'I A@5

"o -(,|(,ro{ ct)

I\){
(J|{
I

sn
G)
@
@

(oo
C')

@
(^,

A
(o

s
(o

(n
--l N)

(0
55(o

N
(,Is

(,
J
1\) @

G)(,l{
No
@
J

o)-(,,
(o

Js{{
@

Js(Jl

J

,No
O)

J\)(,
o)
N)

-
6'

=o

o)
N)

I
(Jl
O')
@

(rl-5
@(o

o)o(o
s__t(, (,

O)

Jo
(.)6

N
i.)5o

N)(o
.E

J
o)

l\)o
@

I

\N
N)

(t)
@(0
co

N)\
@(n --l

(Jl

J
-(x
@
A

N)-G'
(n{

rqJ
o

=o

{(.o
"5
N(.)

@{
{(.,

Jo-(,
I
u)

,trO(o

@
-tN)N

o)O\o
f

JoN
C',

o)
Is

(,r5{(,
5o)
N)

(,
O

o
J.,
cE'o
Ol

N)
@
Ao

N

-.FN(,
I

N
O)
O)

(,-(,
J
O)

N
J-o
(o(o

_(J,o(o
(.)

N)
@i
Cfi(,

J
-(Jl
(o
@

-O)!(,A

l\)
o)-co
o
@

a
6'
{o

N)o"@
N)

J-o
(,
N

N)

\sO
o)
O)-o
(,(,

'o,
5

(l)
--t
o)
@

N)
},

(,
@(,
@

N)
N)L

N
sot\)(.)(o

5ob snoO
@

N
O'){

.A
co
N)(Jr

N
-(o
J{
J

o
so
o)s

(/)
-(nN
@{

f
-oo

O
N)

N)O-o
AA

(,
f\)b
N)(Jl

t-q)
o

-.1o

tr
tDn
n
Fz

=a
=oz{Ir
nm-t
on{

(,
.'
N)O
I
o)

u? J-



+tol{l>t
II
rnlr
m't
oZ
m
o
rra

a
-tc)(-
q)
=.o
=Uoa

roo
o_

-
6'.
o-
Uoa;r

*lotCI+lfl
alol-
o'oa
Uo
@
ita

no
o-o)oo
oo
@x

{
mt-
rTl'g
oz
rn
o
rr
v?

T
-to
.o-0)
3
cJ)

o)o-
0)
=o
(D

.U
J

9.ogr

o
3a
oo-oo-

(]
CI'
g)

=o
3
@

oo-oo

5lol>trl-lal{on

O
-toc
0)*.of

@
-J
@

oC{n
m
o
a
rflvsoilIa

zlol
7l7lmlal
E]
mz{
U'
+o+
::

o
5o-r
N
15
ooo-oa

Cf.
=oo-1)o
0)+oo
=oJ
o
-to
oo(-)

o
o
-t

o)
o
o
oo
C
=
o
=lrola

zo
I7o
9.o.o
@

n
m
@g
rnz
-lU,
{o+
r

o
C+
-lo
0)o
J

OI0:l
-l3lolrl55
fo

I

U)og)

ruo
9.o.o
o

1'r
o
m
o.TI

Ntl]
9.o
rflzo
m

ol
FIol
C]r
{
oz
TT

u,ov7o
€
rnt7

l@

a
o-'ta

t

s,lN(o

Io)\
I

O)
90
o

I(rt(.)
tt5

tNINN

I

o
<)b()

:+h(f

P

:th(f

I
I(o

Or

Io)N
bo

I

o
it,o

II\)
P
1\)
@

INo\N

IN
t)(o

I

o)t'{
INo
in(O

Io)N
bo

I

(o
ie{

Ef
!o
oo
!)(cI
oo
!)
(o
(D

i\)
(O

(oAs N)(, (,(n
l\)
I-{ o O o N)__l

G)
J ,E

O)tro,N
J(oo

-(n
J
O)
@

I*-
(o
O)

N)
'@
I
@

(.r)
A

l\)\
@!

{
6'.

=o

5(/,
o)

J-o
(o(o

I
@

(^)(,
N)
@o) O O o o)

N)
(Jl
N) 5

-o,Ot
N)
f.o

J
@
I

Jn
I
N)
oo

J

\JI\)o
I\)
b,oo)

(Jl
l\)

Ju(Jl(rl5

r
A'o

o

JI(^,
G'{

J
Ib
@(o

N)l\)(,
O)
J
O

(,b
J(}t o O O @(o

A
I
I

5s

{
G,'(,lo
@

J'
j
I
@

(,
-!
J
N)
@

J(,
iuo)
N)

N
@
boo)N

A
I
J

l\)
@b()

{
J
6',

{I

.l
_@

oo)

N
(^)
J(rl

O)(o(o
-(,
J(,

(,
\__l
(o

I
l\)(o C) o

Jb.s
@

I
-l

O(I .5(o

(o
N
iJNN

J'(o(,
OJ

\
N)
-(.^)

CO(,

J
CJr
-Oo
(o
O)

(.)
CDt,5
CD

-.O
CX

(,
(Jt
N)A
I

r!)a
{(]

tr
TD7
n
Fz

Fa
:.=3O
ts=dF

v
ra
T'ov
-l

,.1Lr' 1



I-r
-o
3
o
Jo
-t
-o
g)

=.o
U,

=)
3+f
D-t

:'-ll)
=.o
@

71I
TI
p
!
N
n

o
z

+lol+l>trl
z1.Tl
ov
={
5
lzlolclm
lu)l-{
lolz
le

l1l
t)
=)f
J
D,n
x

roog)

-
-a'
o

Uo
@
if

l
t
,n
D-:,)
Dn
3oax

tr
D+r
D.l
Df)
D

3
D'nx

=lol
-l
s)*o
o
oaIo
th

al{lo
l(Dl*

{l)I{l>l
;1
TI
TI
ran
mzo
m
oC
rnaIozy!

_)al
t)f.)f
3
Dnx

ro
C)
0)

-
@'
o

Uo
@x

2
t
n
D-t

5'
Dn
Uo
U,x

DIol{rlDIalDIflrl
D

J
Dnx

nlol
ol
o
=oo
o
o
UIrfo
o

lal{lo
lol*

EIfllnl
TII
EITIzlol
;fl1
al
mlT
o
m
@

0)

o)
io

IN
Or
ir'

INo)
G)

I
lJo

o

I5
bo..t

I

o\
G)

INo
i\,o

I

fo
(0

Ioo)

I
Or
1.,N5

I5
O)
L>
@

INo)
L)(.)

-.1(]
!o
oo
!)
o
o
!,
J

Gto

-\O l\)(Jl

I
-_t(,
CO

N)(o @
J

N)
O)I\)

6)N
OI

--l(,l(rl (,
CO

N)(,
@

(tt(o(,

{
(t

=o

I
CN

(,{ ]\)
N)

\,1{{ A
N)

(o
@

l\)o(n
@
CttN

@
COo)

J
(Jls

J\l(,
o)l\)(o

r!,a
o

I(,(o
N(o
N)

No
N

@l\)5
O)

(^)(,A
J
G)(,o

N)
Iot9

@(.,
@(0

(o
I
t\)(,

J
(.^)
t\)s

l\)A
@(Jl

(,5(Jl(,

6^

o

I(,
o)

(j)(o
N

o)
19o)N

@(,
Io

('t{s
s(rl5s

N)
O)(,s

NN
or
C')

@oOo
I\){{t\)

Ao)o(o
!
G){
Ctt

o
an

+
tr,

tr
tp7
7
Fz<a
=oz
{
Ir
7rfl-t
on{

(,i
l\)o
.A
o)

-{tol{I>tll
ol
'Tll
ol
vU
J-
lo[-lolrnlnle

atmlol
al+l1l>l-{6z
-{o{
r

ol<+le.
616'ilao lq)
-l-dla
=tol
-l@l

-l:l
-. trl)lfl-5
cf
o-o
o
7o
9..o-o)
a

=l>I:l
1lDl
dl
-1\
)
2
5

o
oaxo
@do
=a

ol
o)

=Jo
o

I)o
I

U)o
o)voadlol=l+

l@

U
tr{
Dcz
n
m
aa-{n
{
oz

o
Lo5

INobo

I

(rt
t^,
@

F(,t(,t

INNt)(^,

IN
\N

I

o)
b,

1'
A'

o
g
0)
0)
@!)oo
'o
(ooo6
(.)

@
G)

I(n N
(,A T9o J

t\)

{
@ J A (j)

I
I
@

Is

Nb
@
@

{o)o (o(o 5
O)

(,
I\)t\)

A(,(,
J
O)O

N-or{
(o
OIo I{ 55

s
I(, @5

J(o
l\)

tl, +



tr
tDn
4.
zsa
=oz{
:Er
f,
m'to7{

(,
:'
N)o
J
O)

-.r Iol{l>t
;1{{
mzo
zo
m

{
m
mz
1'noo
N

=o

-.r Iol{l>l

+mzo
zo
IT

(]
C
-{
!7oon
=yl

-l){I
{-{
TIz
U
zo
IT

'ot
NIololnl>l
=U'
'Tlo
N
?
N
m
n
tolrlolu)
I

{t)lrl
DI

:ln
!ncon

{{
razo
zo
m

-{lol-{l>t;lol
Cr
-l
+-{mz
C]

zo
rn

-{lol-{l>lr
o
=ron
m
1a
{{
mzo
zloln

alslJI
=lJIrol;lotDl
o_l

=(oaEo
a.
0)

l5t=
lo-l-
l(D
l=

U)
oaf.5Jo

Io):o-o

D

u

)
D

U
)c.l
l)
3a

{o-{
1'voov
=U'

@lC]
j
3o-To
0)*
=(o
U)1foo

lo)
ITl-lo
l(ol-lo)
l=lo
t'
I

a
o-
f.
3o
T
o
3C-0)
3
?.

6tCI
-.t I-l
@l
ml7l
stol
ma
'onoon
=IU,

ro
ct

o
s
ttt

zlcl
3l
Erl(Dl-loli
9)(o
oo
so{oo
-o
o

6'.

zlcl
3lolol
ol
'u
0)(o
oa
so{oo
-t
o
lolo,
lx

CIalol
ot
rl
=lrl
=oE
!
9'(o
o

o
q)
(o
lo
t14

1'
q
6'

=l!Coo

mlolol
o
6'oo
A)

o

sa
o
-{o
0)

pl
LIul
-.t
3.1
If
cr
0)

oo
3
Ec
lo
lnlalo

mlrl
mlol{tnoz
o
a
m
7o
I

lol{l<t=t<

g)

AIoo
NoIoo

N
ct)

IN{b(,
I

(o
iro

oi)o
I
5

F(.)5
I

I\)
(,r

I

@
P(.,
cr'

Io5{

IN(rl
bo

obo

I

(,
io(^)

I(,
b(.o

I

@
io(,

I

6
tr(0

{oto
oo
q,
(o
o
o
0,
(o
o

o o {N (, o o
N6)o

J(,
.F

(,-r (,
CO

(o
(Jl (,r s

J
(rl

=z N @
J

ss(,
(,.A
{6)

--t
O)(,

t
6'

=o
5

o O @ (,
N
o

Io{
I
I
J !

(oA C'I A A

in

z N)
l\)O{

(,
@5

(,
A(Jl
O1

__t
(o
5

t-
A)o

=o

Is o)
b)o
C'I

N{ CO

N
o)

-N)
O)o

-(,
O A(,{

-o
O)s grF J(rl (,)

(o

N
j

@(n

-(l)@(o
@

(,
Ct)
N
O)o

-{
o)(no

{
6'

-lg

oo N
-5
(}) OJ 5or (c,

N'o,
(.)
o)

J

-O
N)

tx(,A
A{A

bo)o (,(o N)O
(,(o

N"o,
J
J

-so
(,1)
(o

AI{
N){

(o
(/)(0{

r
t\)o
-{o

{lol{l>trl
>l{{
mz
U
zo
m

{tol
-.t I>lrl
m
mz
{
rnzo
zo
m

-{lol-{l>tl-l
ol-FUn
rn4
(n

{
mzlol>lzlo
lm

o
J
o-o+

-{oo:f
?.
O

olrl>t
cnl
cnl

6
=a

Or(o
(r!
in(o

+
c]

o
G)
Or5
5.\

@o O @O

N)s o N.E

s{
(J)

I
o)s

(,
O(o

o)
@ O o)

@

a5



trtr7
n
Fz

SoiT,=
_:61uZo{
6-Lr

v
rn
T'on{

o
0)o
==o
Noq)og)
ct
o
o

l0)
lqtol(oI 

-.l=
l..

{l
-.1al
D
n
D
D
1)
n
f,
D)
=
o

oof
o-oo-

*l
=l(Dl
=lJI

ol
0)su
0)ao
U'

-)l
)l:a
D)f.)
J
f)
7
t)
f,-
D

c
F
=:oo
-t0)o
J
o'

ol>t-{l>l
ol
ct)
rn

=Ez{
raz
zo
l1t

{o-{
{
{
rfl
@

rn
(f

-{lol{l>lrl
{
m

=a
mrg

-l$l
-lxl
ml
-lNl
=o5rct
0)a

:E

r
=9.
=r('_t
0)-
w
=.o-
J(o

-lolrlEI
zloa
{og
{
rn

{o{
t-

ooo
co-
o'

o-)
ao
oo
crt

no
o
-lofoo

o
o)
@oo

o
C

rDlololxl
cnl
ol
{
roo
mo

-{lMIol-lzl
6l>rra
mnso
m
@

o
{
@

a
ra

=z
mz
zo
m

J{
f
-@'

3o
=
-f
F
@

-.to

o)
5
6'.
=Jo
J

-5
(Jl
O

-l(]

o)
Jo
J
@(o

.l(o
-oo

-\o)

s
Jo(,{(,

O)s{
I

I
s
@

J5 -LO
I
@(Jl

N)!(o

=m
=U,

oog
7
mg

o)
G)-Or

(,l

5
CDo
='oo
5
o
o-
33
U,

O)(,
(Jl
!(,
==oo

o)
I
N)

J

-LJ
s
@

IA Io
,l(,
O

N){(o

=+rma
oog
n
m
F!

(Jl-o,
A{

(,o
I

s
As

,A
I
Os

IoN
I
o)N
@

J
oo(o
@

{o
-{m
=a

(,
N)6o

(Jlo
I

s
Is

I

:-
O5 @o

J
N)
@
(l)

J
@(o
@

-{o
J{t-
m
U'

,..r !:



tr
tpn
n
F4
CN

=oz
-lIr
v
m!on{

g)

(,
..
I\)O_\
O)

-{lol{l>lrl

I

rlolCI+lalol
-l<l
6oa

9.

=o
q)

U)
mr'Tl
o
mox
1'
{7oza

a
a
mzo
m,TI

x

w7
z'nc
U,
m

{o{
rI

o
C)
U)o_l

oo
U,

-{l(Dlol:tl
=l-.tol
0)

@o

=oo
@

nlot+rl(Dl
-lol
=Iolol

l-oo
0r_

-
6',
o

a
-toc
A)nof

<lolrlCIzl
-.t I

ml
ral
7J

o
Cva

INo
+.o

I5F
(,

I

I
@

:th
E

I Io)
Ot
Lo
OI

Npo{
FF
FF

IN
io

IN5
5
G)

I(.)
P
o

No(o
b(c)

{I
!o
oo
q)
(o
o
o
A'

o

roN (rl
@

(,AA o o
o)
90oo

(,
bo

N)
Ibo

Aoo
-L9)OO

N)f-oo

{
6'

=o

55
ct)

(n
C')

(,(o
N) (, o

ct)foo
Poo

IIOo
,s
oo

A
O)bO

N)
@
t)o

r.
A'o

o)

(,t
(o
G'

-{(,
__t

5s(,
O)

()(o 5A

O)
@o)\
C'I

I(rlo
-\O):oo

u)
(,l.)

irJ(Jl

I
(,l){bo

(,AObO

{
6',

{o

C')or
N)5

J(,(,
C.rI

(Jl
A
O)(o

I
N){

(,rN
CD
ix I(Jt

I
-.,1No

sFO
-L(o
o)i)

J

-\Ob

r
0)o

-{tr

-*"7



or(nN
-.t @

ort

g)

=.o8
=q =Q*g
Hod6Eil.

$-
=CJ

qt

+
Eo

qq tqq d ===== d== ds= q= q=== 
= 

:: i ; p ; s t ! t ! ; 3j r i ? i f i 7 1 -r- 1 r 1
6binooo15iT5J5deli[[[xt

(o (.)(, (,
@N(OI

ooooroo'r5
NNoo
o) cD

u,ot5Nt$o--loN
oo(, (,r
ooAS
N)19oo
o) o,

l=lc
l=

o(i,O(Jr_.r r65I
i

oo(r(I
oos5
N)Noo
6) O)

=m7o
z
=@7
:

(,,
OI
ot

o(,r
os
No
g,

=ooa
=(Dv
7
:

oq)(, (,
(l) Iooo{
oo(, ur
ooAS
NNoo
o) o)

1'!tr
mo
=6voI

-.1 (.)(o (rl
ooJ{{
@
N)
A

oo(r or-Es5
NNoo
o)(,)

+
90{
o
t-z
m-{o

ao(Jr(, Gtoooo ol
JSSA COPe:i
oooo oo(roo (,l
oooo oAAAS 5
NNN)N Noooo o

J
o) o) o) o) 6l

u,
xmv
9o{
rov

o
A'
o

Ioo!r
=voq
U'

l_
tol3
I

ooo

!g.o
3o

o
-4.e.
g
3o

oo)esooooo

6Edd$ 'Tto- !)
,dP::

oooo

=ga
.Tt
0l
I

o)r ooo(rooo
oEjoo=-A1l .Tt
:ott"c::

O)aoooooooo
d=o=-o6
5o-n:l q).,f

oo)o)o)o)o) I
NNNNNJN) OirJtrOJCo O
oooSN)N) Ooooooo o

==;=fr# F
zzQz ilr.- 6+2=28 3 'l5 o !! -nr r q,

e;ei= = I

o,N)O(do ooo
7=Ilt ott =l-6
o 'Tl6E(t (oP:

o)rNO(ro
N)Ooo
7=t[ o-n=
boo'lIlA,
5Gt::

(,
troo

(, (.)90 90oooo

(,)
@bo

Poo

s{
90
!
@

AS!{oo600@{{oooGOooo

.A{o
-.J
@

N)o)(o
55

N
O)(o
AA

i. N)@oNou)() o o)@@acoN o (o'toiiob,Lrb i., aoroo)A(, (,l S

(o (, N) (, (, (,
!ogolsr9N(o-.1 (OOr@O)(rr(o(r5(,

so
s)
NJ(Jr

o(is@oo(o(oo'o 'o N@@(n

(,
@Io
@

(,
@Io
@

(,o.o

our(noo@910SoJOoo@

NrSao)o'{9!o90as-{s5@

!
0)(o
o

b1



or(t) N
{co
o)i

q,

o8'
=q =Q *gHod-9il'0r-

d
q)

+
1'o

rs s ts rD :' q @ -g 
= dg = d= = q= 

= 
g9= = g= = 9= = 9E iE iE iE iE iE iP iPibi4eel#d'a'dqgts

*****=F

O) (!@(n
@N
O, Or

oo)O(,ro)No ct)

T(.)r (rIINt -.,

oo(, (,r
oe(, (rt
N)Noo
o) 6,

!
m
x
mz+
mv!za
mo

oDr-{o@ooo??
a€

=Yttdr-{do::.

O,JooN)O ooo
q=oo

,aEJ
=,8(o:

o)JNJ() ooo(no

==PO?d
E0)

9of

O)rooN)O ooo(te
$o

,o
_- -T|
P. q,

=6(o:

oroo oG)Ooo
F=Ec.*6QT(u !)
-(o::

Olroo o@ooo
a=Eg
;d_ a.la0)EA::

o)JN()o)ooo??
9=Yo='=YA2,ilc-ri

l=lc
t-

NO)oor NON(,r

'.1 O)(r1 (,ro)N
N(.'

oo(r orooAA
N)Noo
o, cn

n
moo7(,
mo
(Dooxo

NG)6) Or
ON
@S
N)5

oo(,r (,r
oo55
N)]\Joo
o) o)

=ooar
(pn
7
:

ooro
mz
o{
m
(!p

Io
o

ooooroos5
NNoo
o) o,

=oz{
m7
m

ID

J

oo(,r ('t
oo55
N)Noo
o) o)

!
mzz
U,Ct-
tr
tr,n
:

oo(, oroo(, or
N)Noo
oo)

oo(not
oo(, (,r
N19oo
o) (')

x
t-
€
m
U,+

t_l+to
l=

ooo

1'
0,d
3oc

o
=.e.
g
3o

(,oI
o

(o!,oo

r(,(o@oI lrr !oooooo

(o(,bo

{{(o9!n9oooooo

!
s,oo

-_t!,oO
5
b)o

5
o

(, .lr ss, !,' .'ooo)ooo

(,Ioo
(,
s,oo

(,
N)
sroo

6(Jt$N(,s, !t !noooooo

(,
N)
sioo

oIoo
o
Poo

N)NN)NOJc)ssbooo

I\)N
5o

N
N)

so

si{
J('

b,b,booo

l(,
OONJ9P9oooooo

N)
N)

5o

!
!J
GIo
N



oJ6)N
{@
ori

q,

=.o8
-=

=q =Q *g
Hod69il'gr-

6
q,

-{
to

u, u, is q iq q :qq q q dg I d= E dg 
=riTlrEiPiriFi1;-1r-1'-h6ohbbbta'teE[[

**F-

l"Iql

I'

l=Itr
l3

(.)'{ Or(,N 6(o

ooo(,l
oo(, (,
NNoo
o) o)

7
m0
U)-
TI-{

n (,)Y(r
=NZ@i
ooooroo(r (,r
N)Noo
o) o)

-l
z,
ooCz{
@C
?

OG'o(,o(,oooo

oooor
oo
NNoo
o) o)

=
I
oN
mvz

(r(r (, (,oo o (,i(,A.r 5 Joo o:: :

oo o ooo (, (,r

oo o o
NN N Noo o o
o) o) o) o)

tr
x
mn
9o
+
t-on

@ (.)Sot{o N

(.)(nsooo
'.1 O,-.1 Or{ (.)oss5o
oo(, ot
oo
ISNoo
o) o)

ooo(,
oo
N)Noo
o) o)

o
l-
.Tt

ovoc!

oo(, or
o(,
NNoo
o) o)

C)o!
ma
ID

{
I
m
@
m

U,

=-m3
x
mna

l_
to

t'

ooo

o)-.1 O50oooo
6ar. od6(D-8d'3tri.:

cl)r'-l Oooooo
()) 

=rhg-OU,
= 'Tt9r,d,i3:

o)ro)oAOoooo

ah
*d$ 'Tto. a)

,dP::

o)o)o)o) r
NN)NJN) O
OJ('J O
NAN)5 Ooooo o
7<n= 5m>m> d:,2 i:z 6f.l23 2 'rr
r "n='Tl !)

!F'=rPi I
::::i

O,J
N)O
C'O ooo
vailt o
l-aUs 'Tld16(OP:

O)roo oo)o??os€d
aq qr'56::

O)ro)osooo??
1Yd6o 'ato. t)
,dP::

tq)
d
3o
f

-(,-{
o.)
sn(nA

I
@o

I(o
(,l

I(o
(I

oo
-tN

oo\
N)

NoIoo

N)oIoo

(rr
-5(,r9!o!oPN)@--lSoo)r(,

(,
9)
N
N)

-(,l--t
o)
!n()A

!r -(,r!{oO, O)o(,ro)
?r' i.rl i\rssN)

9
@o

I
O)5

9P9o)o@550

Ilo-6'
='LJ

I !r_

l>
'-oE E LE

@ (o l-(rorl

oo99|-.1 -.1 (O
N)N('

N)Noooooobb\ooN)

o&NrAor Ooo(oo) o) o
iubo\E is boo)r(, 19 0

o5-t o)
99f'
6@(,tooS

!
0)(o
o
(! L1



oJo)N
-lo
or=

ql

=.o8-r5
=q =E *gHsd-g;'

$
d
9)

l=c
l=

{
Eo

-rur rE iq q :q q :q g ;g I -r t,, tD J@ .o =q== 9== 3== 3== 3=i 3: I i= i;i-3rifiri1_i:-li-1rAAiie6o=x#aiililo***I'***
(,)(,

@(,5(,ti
oo(, (,rl=oo
NNoo
o) o)

oo)@ors(j50I
,

oo(, or
oo
NNoo
o) o,

N)O@ (r!oN@
(no,
tso)o(,

oo()gr

N)Noo
o) (,)

G)@orN)5
N(o

oo(j(,r

N)Noo
o) ct)

-ltrrq,

CL
3q)

x
ceo

o)JNO ooo(rl o

?d
CA)3'?

or oooooo
F=.E9.
o'6j3rrOo
IF

or--l Oooooo
(n=
rhq-O1,,
=. 'nY0){-69=:

O)l-{o
NOoooo
Cr{LO
oo9. 'rrfq)(odt:

o)NO ooo??
=€PO?d
ca)3F

O, I\lo50oooo
6=r, (D

o'aio-8d'3r<i.:

O)l oooooo
F=to€63rOo
faiT

(,) (JN) Or-.t o)(o{oA

oo()(,r
oo
N)Noo
o) o)

I
o
f
ma
-{
moIzI

5(.,o(n o
@

!n

oo(, ur

NNoo
o) or

(p

x
mv
eo
-{
ro7

o
A)
o

x
mvox

oo(, or
oo
NNoo
o) 6r

E

=-{maaorC
=

oo
=o
U){

o{
-nro
=

t_
to

l=

ooo

!
9.
CL

3o

o
=.(o

et

3o

I
o)A

N)o)(,
5
O)

N)No) o,9rsr9s50)oos

t\Jo)
s,5
O)

o)
sr,
@(,r

o)P
6

(,
b,
@

(,
b,
@

-@ -oo(, (.,ooo)oobbb,oo@

-@(,oo
bo

-@(,oIoo
o)I
6)N

-@r(,0)6)o9990)(')o
N)NO

o)I
O)N

N
rn--t

NNO)(r(,ro
-l{O) N)

N)
sJr
__t

(,9
@

(})(.,NJoo(,io io -tJ

(,I(o

(,I(o
'N)oo)o)o) (', (,

iro io s(, (,r o)

(, (,) O)ro)b, b, io@@(n

!
0)(o
os 1o



oo)N
{oAt

0,

=.o8
=!P =Q*g
Hod-gt'

g)

d
g)q

I
o

q q iE s ; = E d= E d= 
===y====;;;Iirl?1?=.r+tbbondildda**i*-

@@tP vt
Jr

o
oox

.s o)o, gr5so)
@-.t

ooo(,r
NN
NNoo
o, o)

\=lc
l3

o
A'
o

(r o)
HA\TN
o)

oooot

N)Noo
o) 6)

=mrra
.Tt

voo

N) O'oolN5@{
N)

ooGOr
60
NNoo
o) o)

ooro

soO(ns5r
oooor
NN
N)Noo
o, ol

ID

x
mv
9o
+
roa

(')
(,l

N5N) Oti
ooo(,r
NN
NNoo
o) o)

rC
m
trz
m

so,ool s(t)
P

ooo(,r
o6
NNoo
o) o)

@

x
m7
F
-{
roa

so
I

o(,
@
I\)o
o,

1'
o.II
o
ono
m
?

z
A)
3o

ooo

l_l+tol3
I

l,
9.

3o

lo
t6'l='
lo,
ler<

NN=
l-o @ t=

@ @ l+(nGl

or-.1 Ooooo??
@{itgoa
I'IilPd9

:

O)Ao)o{ooo??a€() o
oo -tr\., o
i$(o-:

O)O) r
N)N) OJE o(ro ooo o

>? to-

49dz= 'Ttoq a)
--. (o.TIO 

:
:f

O)lNO(roNO??4,Elrl O

6oo 'Tl
fq,
=(o:!

oooo)o)o)oro)o) rNitututuN)NNJN)N) os jSoN)rJJi ONOOOJ(ON(r(' oooooooooo o

@;@mt>>>> d'
DzQ tzzzzz 6a;sPr- \in2 ;gEgdSq.i+e ,H
=9 o il =: !D Y T T
: : f -: : : -: '

o)aoo o@o9?p=og_(ndo 'Tl
=0,ef

t\)
s)(o
(Jl

l\)
(o
ao(n

o&tN)(o (or(O
Lo io ioA (rl

(Jl(o
io

(r(o
i'rc

-(, 
,o)@P9-.t N)(or

-obor
oo o (o
o, o) (.)
{N) O (O(or o

A(,
!Doo

(o(,IoO

@(,Ioo

(l)-o N r-J (, (rr bt (o
N_..1(Jr@(Jir--.1-_l o) (r
@.ts'oD(JnCJrrOnr { Oaoi,-broLriu<,rb s boo(,-.1@@(,(nS 5 O

, O r N r J-(!(,
N)-{(n@()rJ-{!
co.N'or)(JnooiJonr(o(nro)o(,N(,O(ro)(Jr.{cD(o(Jl(Jra

-(,o)
O){
EA

(,
N) i, -o
ooo)O O '.1bbsoo5

N)o
s>oo

(06a(r(Io9P!,)oooooo

!!)(oo
or -lt



or(t) N
{@ra,o)=

q)

=.o8
=Q =a *EN'Jeuo50I.,-+ g,

g)

6
q)

+
oo

@ tp i qq q :U
rt--i-
=tt-6C)
6qaO
X=

ur rD i q q : q q : g g d =E 
g

=-<r3t=1-a-+;16boY5=rds38.liXxr

AU'(, (ttoo(oo
NN

(, (.)@or--l Or

@
@

oo(, (,r
N)N(n ol
NNoo
o) 6)

o(})oot
O(,I
SN

@ (.)
N)(,
@gt-{ G)
N

ooor or
N) 19ool
N)Noo
o) (')

oo(Jl or
NNoor
N)Noo
o) ot

tp7oo
v+

0
m
=oo

Llo)

i'

6o (J l(, (, (rl5 t=o)o) o lENN) J::l

z
A'
3o

oo oo(, ('t
N)N) N
60 (,r
NN) Noo o
oo) or

-t9o+

5 a,)o(n A(0
P

oo(r (,
N.] No(I
NNoo
o) 6)

@

x
mn
F
-t
1-oA

(n(, 5oo o
A5 o)::;
oo ooo (,sN s60 (nEN troo o
o) o) o)

oo(, (,r
NJN(, or
NNoo
o) ol

xzo
m7(-

oTI-n
o
m
g
m!o{

1"
3

I

ooo

!
9.

3o

o
=.e.
g
3o

o)o) roo ooo o(r(i ooo o
oo ;'OO =!E a5foo 'Tl
=f !).,o 

F

ooo)o)o)o)o)o)o)NfufuNNNNNN) Oji;jrroN)iJ OoNo(rN(ro(r() ooooooo(Jroo o

=H===H;FF F1i?17!,=?? 6zi; zA f 6''> rl Z :ro = o 5 P = 6.c)'c) P- ar =_.(d o e+r ,fr.ni r3 P 6_-3 r1 l

o)roooo-.t ooo

€dg6E;r-
T

O)roooo{ooo
9=Eqgd
Qrrg,o

?

O)o)osooooo
raY' q_

d6o 'Tto0)
,dF::

O)roooo-.1 O??q=tsqe63il
I

luoIoo
(, o,
9D 90
N) N)(, (,

--l
P(Io

L,1,,,,6,i-
6OOrOr@r(oI !n 9r:r 9o !, !n .'I@ooNr(ooarON--l(nOr(OONO

.:.
t,rbo(J](or(,r(rJ(o N >l6oa{o(,(r-(j o O)

od)oNr(oosr (o (,6fu<(Jlo)(ooNo ol o

-o
NI
@o,

N)
s,
-.1s

Jc)NNN.)
9DSr9--l -l @A5O)

l!
s,!s

(,
s,(o
@

(,!,(o
@

(,Ioo
o9oo

{Ii
N)N

rN(r(, { o9o9o I 9N)N) (,r oGO O O
(r(.)N)
!'' SJ 9D(.o (O --l
@@5

(, (, (,99!,)oo(ooo@

.{N(I
Nl$9N)OoN@o

1'
A)
GIo
ctl



or6,N
{ort

!)

=.oo

=o3o
=.q,

fct
q,
a

o
oox
tlo
g.

=!)
No
o,

-{@O=-t
r {

o

@

Q lri l=
ol(rl
N)Q loN loa 16orl

I

zq)
3o

=o
3

ooo

o)oo_.t

?
ac6
E.
oa

'o
g.
CL

3oc
=

o:.
9.
SL

3oc

(,o
b,--l

(r!o
b){

N)N
boo

N)
N
@

!
A)(o
o
\l

7s


